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The new
Harris Corporation

Harris is a communications equipment company. We have combined the

wide-ranging technical and business resources of the company into 

a single high-technology enterprise focused on dynamic worldwide 

communications markets. We are agile, flexible, and able to respond

quickly to customer requirements for ‘next level’ communications solutions.
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*Results exclude after-tax restructuring charges of $3.3 million in 1999 and $10.1 million in 1998, and a special after-tax charge for litigation costs of $13.6 million in 1999.
Return on sales and equity are computed excluding these expenses.

Government–47%

Commercial–53%

Commercial Communications vs. Government Communications Business
Continuing Operations (Percent of Sales)

Financial Highlights

Dollars in millions except per share amounts 1999 1998 Change

Sales $ 1,743.5 $ 1,924.8 -9%
Income from Continuing Operations

before extraordinary item:
Including restructuring and other charges 49.9 66.4 -25%
Excluding restructuring and other charges* 66.8 76.5 -13%

Per Share Income from Continuing Operations 
before extraordinary item (diluted):
Including restructuring and other charges .63 .83 -24%
Excluding restructuring and other charges* .84 .96 -13%

Cash Dividends Per Share .96 .88 +9%
Return on Sales* 3.8% 4.0% –
Return on Equity* 4.1% 4.7% –
Diluted Average Shares Outstanding (Millions) 79.7 80.0 –
Number of Record Shareholders 10,393 10,545 -1%
Number of Employees from Continuing Operations 10,500 11,100 -5%

International–26%

Domestic–74%

International vs. Domestic Business
Continuing Operations (Percent of Sales)
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We will provide our customers with
communications product, system and

service solutions that take their
businesses to the next level.

Letter to Shareholders

To Our Shareholders. Harris Corporation has embarked
upon the most significant change in its 105-year history.
The company is transitioning from a four-business, decen-
tralized enterprise into a single communications equipment
company focused on worldwide markets for voice, data,
and video. 

It is the right change at the right time. For more 
than seven years, Harris had established a solid track
record of double-digit earnings growth. At the same time,
however, sales grew more slowly, averaging about 5 
percent. Earnings growth faltered in fiscal 1998 as a
result of the continued downturn in the semiconductor
market and a drop in prices for office products. We
restructured the company in the spring of 1998, with the
primary focus on reducing costs in our Semiconductor
business. It was not enough.

Earnings continued to decline in fiscal 1999 as a
result of deteriorating international market conditions,
and strategic planning data indicated that our growth as a
multibusiness company over the next several years would
be modest, at best. Clearly, this was an unacceptable
outlook for Harris and its shareholders, and definitive
action was required.

Disposition of Lanier and Semiconductor. In
April this year, we announced a major repositioning of
the company to consolidate all of our talent and financial
resources on communications equipment where Harris has
solid market positions and industry-leading products. The
initiative included the sale of our power semiconductor
business. Subsequent to the April announcement, we
reached an agreement with an investment portfolio com-
pany for the sale of the entire Semiconductor business.
We are delighted that the Semiconductor business could
be sold intact, and that all employees were offered a job
in the new company, called Intersil. 

In a separate initiative to increase shareholder 
value, Harris will spin off its very successful Lanier
Worldwide subsidiary as a tax-free dividend to share-
holders. Shareholders will receive one share of Lanier
stock for every share of Harris stock. Lanier will be a
publicly traded company, operating under the same name. 

Fiscal 1999 – a disappointing year. The company
reported its fiscal 1999 results consistent with the reposi-
tioning announcement. The Lanier and Semiconductor
businesses are treated as “discontinued operations” and
the results of our commercial and government communi-
cations businesses are shown as “continuing operations.” 

Both sales and earnings from continuing operations
declined in fiscal 1999 as a result of general market
weakness. Price competition was particularly brutal 
in commercial communications markets.

Fortunately, market conditions are improving. In the
fourth quarter, sales in the commercial communications
segment grew 10 percent, led by strong demand for 
the company's digital high-definition broadcast products
and microwave radio products. Fourth quarter earnings 
in the segment increased more than 10 percent and
orders were up over 12 percent. The government commu-
nications segment had a good year at the operating
level, but earnings were reduced by $17 million due to
write-offs for an eight-year-old contract dispute related
to the A-12 aircraft program and excess inventory on a
development contract.

A stronger Harris. The Semiconductor sale was 
completed in August 1999, and the spin-off of Lanier 
is expected this fall. Proceeds from these actions will 
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greatly strengthen the company’s balance sheet. Debt will
be reduced by more than half and cash will be increased 
by approximately $500 million. Capital expenditure
requirements will be considerably lower in the new
Harris, because the bulk of our historical capital expense
was tied to Semiconductor, and much of our acquisition
spending was focused on Lanier.

A pure communications equipment company.
It is anticipated that Harris will use cash from the 
transactions to repurchase Harris shares and to acquire
businesses that will expand the company's presence in
both commercial and government markets. It is clear that
the company's strength lies in communications equipment
technology, and we will build on that strength by expanding
our portfolio of products and our technology base through
acquisitions and internal development. Harris is now a
single high-technology enterprise focused on worldwide
communications equipment markets.

We have taken several actions to ensure the 
success of the company's pure communications strategy.
For example, we have eliminated an entire level of manage-
ment, previously known as our sector organizations. This
action significantly reduces costs and places the five
operating divisions on a straight line reporting basis to
the Office of the Chairman. We have structured a more
synergistic organization to provide, for example, a much
higher rate of technology transfer from our government
business into the commercial segment. We have reduced
other support functions consistent with a smaller organi-
zation. These actions will not only streamline decision 

Phillip W. Farmer
Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer

E. Van Cullens
President and 
Chief Operating Officer

Bryan R. Roub
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer

OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN:



making and technology crossovers, but should save 
the company approximately $20 to $30 million annually.
The lower cost structure will ensure that profit margins
can once again provide us the financial resources we
need for growth.

A market and sales-driven company. Among 
the biggest changes will be an increased focus on market-
ing and sales. We have installed a new international 
marketing organization and created several new marketing
and technology functions that will centralize activities 
and align them directly with the operating divisions. We
are investing in a web and e-commerce presence, and 
new common financial information systems will provide
the granular detail necessary to control costs and manage
effectively at the product-line level. An industry-leading
sales management system will equip our sales force as
well as any in the world, and we are implementing a 
new incentive program for our sales organizations to 
help increase sales growth.

Our Commercial Communications segment addresses
three primary market areas – wireless communications,
broadcast communications, and network support. The
Government Communications segment addresses the
government communications market.

Product development. Equally important, we 
have accelerated new product development. In the first
quarter of fiscal 2000, we expect to introduce three new
microwave radios and three broadcast products, including
a new solid-state transmitter for the digital television 
market. Also during the quarter, we expect to introduce a
new Services Gateway Application on our Harris Network
Management product, and a wideband Line Test System 

for the telephone competitive local exchange carrier 
market, an area where Harris is growing rapidly. In the 
second quarter, we expect to introduce seven new prod-
ucts; launch a field trial of our new millimeter wave,
point-to-multipoint, broadband wireless access system;
and roll out a digital wireless local loop system. In the
third and fourth quarters, we expect to announce a new
line of SDH high-frequency, high-capacity radios that will
effectively round out our portfolio in the microwave area.

In defense markets, much of our R&D activity is
directed at advanced communications for the digital 
battlefield of the 21st Century. Harris is a world-class
developer of antennas, modems, and microelectronics for
classified systems. Defense communications will remain a
profitable and growing business for the company as many
of the programs we are working on move into production.

Office of the Chairman. In July, E. Van Cullens 
became president and chief operating officer of Harris. 
He had been serving as president of Harris' Communications
Sector since 1997. Prior to joining Harris, he held senior
management positions at Siemens, including senior vice
president and head of the global Internet Solutions Business
for Siemens Public Communication Networks operation.
Mr. Cullens joins me, and Bryan R. Roub, senior vice 
president and chief financial officer, in the newly created
Office of the Chairman. We will work as a team to provide
oversight for all organizational elements of the company
and to react quickly to the fast-moving requirements of
the global communications business.

Conclusion and outlook. We are very excited about
the prospects for the new Harris Corporation. It will be a
financially solid company with low debt, a good cash posi-
tion, and a sharp focus on technical and marketing leader-
ship. For the first half of fiscal 2000, our margins 
will remain under pressure as we continue to shed the
overhead structure associated with a larger company. 

As a result, we anticipate lower sales and earnings for 
continuing operations in the first half of the year, compared
to the previous year. 

In the second half of the year, we expect earnings
growth to resume. Over the longer term, we believe 
Harris will return to a 15 percent annual profit growth
track. Equally important, the new Harris should be able 
to generate annual revenue growth greater than 10 
percent, which will allow us to build a more rewarding
company for shareholders, customers, and employees.

We are confident of this projected performance
because of the richness of the communications markets
we serve — wireless, broadcast, network support, and
government. Harris' participation in these markets is fur-
ther explained in the following sections of the report. The 
markets offer great opportunities for companies with 
the right products and services, and Harris has both. Our
intent is to be a growing international communications
equipment company with a reputation for vast technological
resources, state-of-the-art products, and quality that is
second to none.

Sincerely,
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Phillip W. Farmer
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

E. Van Cullens
President and 
Chief Operating Officer

Bryan R. Roub
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer
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Leadership Positions

C O M M E R C I A L  W I R E L E S S
In wireless communications markets, Harris
supplies a broad range of digital microwave
radios (including spread spectrum, millimeter
wave, and point-to-multipoint systems), wire-
less local loop telephony systems, broadband
wireless access products, secure communication
platforms, and HF/UHF/VHF military radios.
Customers include providers of fixed and 
cellular/PCS telecommunications services,
law enforcement agencies, air traffic controllers,
and military forces around the world.

C O M M E R C I A L B R O A D C A S T
Within radio and television broadcast markets,
Harris provides advanced transmission 
systems, digital encoding systems, antenna
systems, studio-to-transmitter links, satellite
communication systems, studio systems, and
mobile broadcast systems. Harris has been a
leading developer and advocate for the new
era of digital television (DTV) and is taking a
similar position in current discussions about
a U.S. standard for digital radio.

G O V E R N M E N T
Harris has been providing communication
systems to the U.S. government for almost 50
years. Key programs include satellite commu-
nications; electronic warfare simulation; 
networks for command, control, communica-
tions, and intelligence; weather systems;
image manipulation; and communications
for aircraft, spacecraft, missiles, and munitions.
Defense R&D is now being applied to 
commercial product development in areas
such as broadband wireless access, antenna
technology, satellite communications, and
tracking and location systems.

C O M M E R C I A L  N E T W O R K  S U P P O R T
For public and private communications service
providers, Harris delivers a complete  range of
products to enhance and manage network
infrastructures. These products and systems –
including craft tools, line test systems, 
telephone switches, call center solutions, 
and network management systems – enable
service providers to test, support, manage,
and maintain telecommunication networks
around the world.

� Largest supplier of microwave radio systems in 
North America

� 2,500 microwave links for United States Cellular
Corporation

� Rapid deployment of microwave links in Brazil,
Argentina, Romania, and China

� First operational SDH (Synchronous Digital
Hierarchy) backbone microwave radio system
for three of Mexico’s largest telecom companies

� World’s longest 18-GHz system for Eastern
Railways of India

� 6,000 mile microwave radio system for GazProm
pipeline in Russia

� Most secure mobile digital communications
platforms for law enforcement

� Leads the nation in the manufacture of radio and
TV broadcast transmitters

� Supplies broadcasters in over 150 countries and
can totally outfit a  facility anywhere in the world

� Introduced the first digital AM, FM, and television
broadcast transmitters

� Built the transmitter which broadcast the first
commercial HDTV signal

� Produced and broadcast the first live major
sporting event in HDTV

� Distributes 10,000 broadcast studio products
� Pioneered 70 broadcast technology “firsts”

including many world standards

� Large, space-deployable satellite antennas
� Weather systems for defense applications and

the FAA (Federal Aviation Administration)
� Phased array antenna technology for mobile 

communications
� Geospatial image management systems
� Digital moving map systems for tactical aircraft
� Anti-jam video/data links for missile systems
� Tactical Common Data Links for unmanned aerial

vehicles
� Fiber-optic networks and high-speed data buses

for advanced avionics

� Largest supplier of craft test sets and tools in 
North America

� Leading supplier of line test solutions for emerg-
ing telecom carriers

� State-of-the-art, open architecture, network 
management systems

� Leading supplier of switching systems for calling
card, operator, and virtual-office services

� Most advanced handheld field access system for
telecom technicians

� Industry’s first call center solution with fully 
integrated Automatic Call Distributor & Interactive
Voice Response applications

� Leading software for network provisioning 
interface device (Services Gateway Application)

Communications Markets



Commercial Wireless Communications

Aurora Microwave Radio
The new Aurora family of digital
microwave radios provides inexpensive,
easy-to-install access to the Internet,
LAN/WAN networks, and cellular/
PCS/PCN systems.

Communications in Brazil 
Harris installed 600 microwave
radio links for one of Brazil’s first
digital cellular networks. Success
in Brazil will serve as a blueprint
for expansion in other countries.

StarBurst Broadband Radio
Harris teamed with Wavtrace, Inc., 
to introduce StarBurst, a broadband
wireless system that delivers multi-
media services to residences, home
offices, and enterprises.

xtending Communications around the world.
In the wireless telecommunications market, microwave
radios have been a viable option to leased telephone lines
for some time. Microwave is reliable and easy to install.
Put up a couple of antennas, turn on the radio, and you’re
in business. No copper wires to lay; no ground to dig up.
Harris, which is the leading supplier of digital microwave
radio systems in North America, has focused on two 
primary applications for microwave: links to connect 
cellular and PCS sites, and private network applications.
Private network applications include electric utilities,
railroads, local governments, and emergency service
operations where the public telephone network is not
reliable or secure enough, or just doesn’t exist.

Harris has one of the industry’s broadest lines of
digital microwave radios and continues to add new radios
for all frequency bands. For example, the new Aurora
radio operates in low-frequency, unlicensed bands and 
is ideal for private networks, providing wireless access
to LANs, WANs, and Internet service, as well as links 
for cellular and PCS systems.

Broadband Wireless Access. In the high-frequency
spectrum, the company has introduced StarBurst, which 

provides broadband wireless access 
for the latest voice, data, and video
applications. The radio supports high
rates of network traffic and is a point-
to-multipoint system, which means it
acts as a hub for multiple access points.
StarBurst was developed in an alliance
with Wavtrace, Inc., an industry pioneer
in point-to-multipoint systems using
millimeter wave technology.

Because of the growing importance of millimeter
wave technology, Harris has created a design center near
Los Angeles to develop radios that operate in the higher
microwave frequency bands. The new products will allow
customers to occupy a less crowded frequency spectrum
and gain access to large blocks of bandwidth that can sup-
port emerging high data rates and multiple-access markets.

Wireless Local Loop Service. An area of future
growth for Harris, particularly in emerging market countries,
is fixed wireless service. Fixed wireless systems provide
a wireless connection from a home or office building to
the telephone switching center of the public network.
Harris has introduced its new WINRoLL wireless local
loop system to extend the public telephone network to
unserved or poorly serviced areas around the world, 
and for emergency and rapid deployment applications.

E
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Wireless Local Loop 
Harris’ WINRoLL provides an easy-to-
install wireless connection to a local
exchange. China Telecom uses WINRoLL
for rapid deployment in emergency 
situations.

We provide a broad base 
of radios for voice, data, and video

transmission.

Microwave Laboratory 
Harris’ new lab near Los Angeles
develops advanced “millimeter wave”
microwave radios to support high 
data rates and access to multiple 
communications markets.

Tactical Manpack Radios 
The new AN/PRC-117 radio provides low-
band VHF for combat networks, high-band 
VHF for public safety and ground-to-air, 
and UHF for military ground-to-air and 
satellite communications.

Major Product Introductions/Acquisitions

C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  M A R K E T

H A R R I S  N E X T  L E V E L  S O L U T I O N S
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• Introduced StarBurst microwave radio, a state-of-the art broadband wireless access product 

• Launched Constellation, a medium-capacity, digital microwave radio

• Created a Millimeter Wave Design Center to develop  higher-frequency band microwave radios

• Launched MicroStar 7, indoor/outdoor digital microwave radio for international markets 

• Formed a strategic alliance with Wavtrace, Inc., to address the wireless broadband market

• Provided wireless local loop systems to China Telecom for emergency communications 

• Introduced the world’s most fully featured multiband/multimission radio for soldiers in the field

Seneca Secure Mobile Radio
Seneca provides mobile law
enforcement agents with highly
secure communications and the 
ability to access remote databases
and match fingerprints in seconds. 

A World Leader in 
HF Secure Radios
Harris also is a leader in
lightweight, man-portable 
and mobile radios for law
enforcement and military
forces around the world. 
Its new Seneca radio is a
secure, mobile communica-
tions platform that provides
law enforcement agents
with much more than a
radio. Seneca offers mobile
users instant access to the

national crime information
database for fingerprint
matching and other 
information aiding in the
apprehension of criminals.
More importantly, Seneca
provides the highest levels 
of communications security.
Harris leadership in secure
radio systems has evolved
from 40 years of experience
in providing radios to
defense customers.



Commercial Broadcast Communications

“Everybody Loves Raymond”
This fall (‘99), CBS will broadcast 
prime time shows, such as the popular
“Everybody Loves Raymond,” in HDTV.
Harris is providing transmitters for 14
CBS-owned stations.

Harris is the leader in 
digital equipment for television 

and radio broadcasting.

KING-TV in Seattle is among the first
U.S. stations to broadcast daily news
programs in HDTV.  KING uses Harris
transmitters and a news set designed
for the wide-screen HDTV format.

Success No Surprise
Harris’ success in digital 
television is no surprise –
it helped to start the digital
revolution. For example, the
company in 1990 designed
the RF test bed used to 
evaluate new digital TV 

systems. It developed the
first digital transmitter and
exciter, which is needed to
generate a superior signal
quality, and a Harris 
transmitter was the first 
to transmit a commercial
HDTV signal.

Digital Transmitters
Through mid-1999, Harris had supplied
approximately 60 percent of the digital TV
transmitters purchased by broadcasters
in the 30 largest U.S. media markets.
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SigmaCD-II Transmitter
The SigmaCD-II  high-power, UHF DTV
transmitter provides high efficiency 
and cost performance for broadcasters
transitioning to the new era of DTV.

FlexiCoder Digital TV Encoding System
The FlexiCoder gives broadcasters the
flexibility of a digital encoding system
that will provide multichannel standard-
definition and high-definition encoding 
in one box. 

he leader in Broadcast Communications. Marking
the advent of digital television (DTV), Harris broadcast the
launch of space shuttle Discovery in digital high-definition
television (HDTV) on October 29, 1998. The historic event
was transmitted live to select audiences in 20 U.S. cities,
which experienced the return to space of Senator John
Glenn through the unsurpassed digital images and surround
sound of HDTV.

While the Glenn launch made space history, Harris’ 
telecast signaled the beginning of the digital television
rollout. By the fall of 1999, more than 120 stations will be
transmitting DTV programming, reaching over one-half of
America’s 100 million television households. By 2003, all
1,600 of the nation’s commercial and non-commercial TV
stations will be broadcasting in digital television.

The transition to digital has created enormous oppor-
tunities for equipment suppliers, and Harris is uniquely
positioned to compete effectively in the rapidly emerging
DTV marketplace. Through mid-1999, the company had 
supplied over 60 percent of the digital TV transmitters and
50 percent of the DTV encoders purchased by broadcasters
in the 30 largest U.S. media markets.

Digital Radio Is Next. As DTV imple-
mentation continues over the next three 
to four years, digital radio is expected 
to generate considerable excitement 
as well. A new proposed standard – In-
Band/On-Channel (IBOC) – will deliver 
CD-quality sound and data over existing
broadcast channels and will make radio
broadcasters competitive with other
media. Harris was an early supporter 
of the IBOC standard and the company’s
transmitters were selected as the test
vehicle. When the nation’s 12,000 radio stations begin
their conversion to digital, Harris intends to lead that
broadcasting revolution as well.

The International Market. Countries around the
world also are beginning the transition to digital radio 
and TV, and Harris is tailoring its products for the global 
market. With a manufacturing facility in England and an
R&D center in France, Harris is providing digital broadcast
products for Digital Video Broadcasting and Digital Audio
Broadcasting – the European standards for digital television
and radio. Harris currently provides broadcast products
and systems to customers in more than 150 countries and
is expected to ride the digital wave worldwide.

Radio Products 
Harris is at the forefront of the transition
to digital radio and is encouraging a 
single digital standard and rapid imple-
mentation for 12,000 U.S. stations.

Major Contracts/Acquisitions/Activities
C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  M A R K E T

B R O A D C A S T

• Acquisition of Intraplex, a developer of digital network broadcast and wireless products 

• High-definition encoding systems for A.H. Belo, Cox, Gannett, and Hearst-Argyle TV stations

• Sigma CD-II UHF digital TV transmitters for North Carolina TV stations WRAL-TV & WRAZ-TV

• Diamond CD UHF solid-state digital television transmitters for ABC-owned stations in 
    New York, Chicago, and Los Angeles

• Radio broadcast transmitters, exciters, antennas, and other equipment for Cox Broadcasting

• 40-city tour by Harris/PBS DTV Express, a 66-foot tractor trailer that took the excitement of 
    digital television to broadcasters, educators, and the general public

H A R R I S  N E X T  L E V E L  S O L U T I O N S
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Mobile Satellite News Gathering (SNG)
Harris is providing SNG vehicles, 
transmitters, antennas, and other 
broadcast equipment to TV Azteca 
S.A. de C.V. in Mexico to outfit its 
TV stations in more than 50 cities.

T



Commercial Network Support

We Own the Belt
Harris products are considered the
tools of choice by telephone service
technicians around the world. 

Line Test System (LTS)
The automated LTS provides 
competitive local exchange 
carriers (CLECs) with a compact
central office system for line 
testing, remote testing, and 
report management.

Major Contracts & Product Introductions

C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  M A R K E T
N E T W O R K  S U P P O R T

• MCI WorldCom selected Harris’ Line Test System for its nationwide network

• Harris’ ClearView switching system was named Telephony Expo’s “Best of Show” in the  
    Call Center Category by Computer Telephony magazine

• BellSouth Brazil selected Harris Network Management system to manage the backbone and 
   transmission infrastructure of its São Paulo cellular network

• Harris introduced two new handheld test sets that provide advanced features for coping 
    with increased data traffic

• Harris will provide network management for PEGASO PCS, which is deploying the first 100 
    percent digital wireless network in Mexico

• Harris introduced Services Gateway Application, which automates many of the traditionally
    manual activities required to provision, configure, and activate communications network elements 

H A R R I S  N E X T  L E V E L  S O L U T I O N S
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Harris provides a complete 

range of products and systems
to test, manage, and enhance 

network infrastructures.
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Harris Supports The Network
From The Ground Up
The appetite for information-
rich services around the
world is enormous. Mobile
customers with disposable
incomes, and rapidly emerg-
ing new service companies,
are demanding multimedia
information any time, 
anywhere. The staggering
demands on telecommuni-

cation companies require a
broad base of products and
a network of support systems
that are agile and flexible.
Harris has structured a new
network support business
that provides its customers
with products ranging from
basic tools for the craftsperson
right up to sophisticated 
systems that monitor and
control large, disparate
telecommunication networks.
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e Own The Belt. Trucks that carry telecommunica-
tions equipment almost always have a set of Harris tools
inside. Telecom technicians maintain and service various
voice and data lines, and the Harris tools they use have
become industry standard and approved in the technically
demanding telephony marketplace.

Line Test Systems Are A Hit With CLECs. At 
the other end of a telephone subscriber’s copper-line 
connection is a telephone company central office where
the “subscriber loop,” or local telephone connection, is
tested and problems are identified. This business changed 
dramatically when the Telecommunications Act of 1996
required incumbent local exchange carriers to open their
facilities to Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECs).
Harris’ automated line test systems are being selected 
by a majority of CLECs because the systems work with
any switching equipment. Harris systems also are well
suited for emerging telecom data markets that utilize new 
technologies such as xDSL, a high-speed digital service.

Harris provides switching communications applica-
tions of both PBX and network switching systems, 
application products for enterprise call centers, and 
support for pre-paid and debit-card calling services. 

The enhanced services switching platform 
provides revenue-producing, value-added
communications services. The company’s 
new ClearView call center application is 
a software-intensive system that allows
businesses to match the skills of their
operators to different maintenance and
service requirements.

Network Management. One 
of the most exciting new products in
Harris’ network support portfolio is the
Harris Network Management (HNM)
system. From a central location, HNM can monitor and
control a company’s broad network of voice switching,
video transmission, and data communications equipment.
HNM is designed to work with all equipment, regardless
of manufacturer. A new offering, called Services Gateway
Application (SGA), automatically translates a service work
order and activates all of the associated network equip-
ment. Revenues for HNM have doubled for each of the
past three years.

Harris Network Management (HNM).
Cox Communications uses an HNM
system in Atlanta to monitor and 
control its nationwide network 
of voice switching and data 
communications equipment.

Telecom Test Sets and Tools
Harris, the leading supplier of technician
test sets and tools, has developed the
TS250 basic rate ISDN test set (right).
This will be followed shortly by new
handheld ADSL test sets.

Call Center Systems
Harris’ ClearView system quickly connects
customers to the right resource, manages
the transaction, and provides reports to
optimize call center operations.

Telephone Switching
Harris delivers an enhanced telephone
switching platform that supports a new
debit card calling system and subscriber
services such as voice mail, fax mail,
and conference calling.

W



[12]

efense Communications. Harris conducts advanced
research studies, develops prototypes, and produces a
broad range of airborne, spaceborne, and ground com-
munications for the U.S. Government. For example, the
company is developing a family of wideband digital data
links to support the transmission of radar, imagery, and
video from reconnaissance aircraft, unmanned aerial
vehicles, and satellites. For the Army’s new Comanche
helicopter, Harris is providing a digital map that electron-
ically displays real-time terrain, flight paths, and target
locations. The company also has a long history of providing
communication ground terminals that allow U.S. forces
deployed in forward positions to maintain contact, via
satellite, with command centers located in the U.S.
and overseas.

Dual Use Application Programs. The U.S. Army 
is moving rapidly to digitize communications on the 21st
Century battlefield. “Communications on the move” is a
concept in which future combatants in a Humvee, tank, or
a foxhole would have the same communications capabilities
– voice, data, and video – as someone sitting in a Pentagon
office. Harris has developed new antenna technology,
called “phased array,” that enables the production of
lightweight, rugged antennas for the Army’s tactical
communications initiative. In addition, the company

has entered into a cooperative Dual Use
Application Program with the Army that 
will allow Harris to take phased array 
technology into commercial markets.
Commercial manufacturing processes 
will, in turn, significantly lower the 
Army’s per-unit costs. 

Cross-Over Technologies. Other
recent examples of Harris defense technol-
ogy crossing over to commercial markets
include a dual-band TV broadcast antenna that is capable
of simultaneously transmitting both analog and digital
signals. The antenna, developed from Harris phased
array technology, saves both cost and space (versus two
antennas) for broadcasters transitioning into the digital
era. Defense technology also was used to develop a 
50-foot diameter, space-deployable antenna that is being
used for commercial cellular communications in Asia,
weather systems for general aviation pilots, and imaging
systems for oil exploration and agriculture. In another
area, Harris expertise in microelectronics and advanced
wireless technology has spawned a new business in
electronics that track and locate people, pets, and 
high-value assets.

Government Communications

Major Contracts

C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  M A R K E T
G O V E R N M E N T

• $110 million contract to maintain and improve the avionics and testing process for the 
    Canadian military’s primary attack fighter jet

• Multimillion-dollar, follow-on contract to supply satellite equipment for voice, facsimile, and 
    pager services throughout the Pacific Rim

• $55 million contract to help establish a wireless network that will enable U.S. boaters to 
    phone, fax, and e-mail from a next-generation marine radio

• Potential $90 million contract to upgrade a DOD satellite communications system

• Subcontract to support the Battlefield Management Command/Control and Communications 
    element of the National Missile Defense System

• $49 million electronic warfare contract for the Air Force’s Multiple Threat Emitter System 
    Modification Program

H A R R I S  N E X T  L E V E L  S O L U T I O N S
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Interference Mitigation
Engineers are applying interference 
mitigation (IM) technologies to improve
frequency spectrum coordination 
between emerging broadband satellite
systems and terrestrial systems.

Phased Array Antennas
Harris is developing powerful, lightweight,
and affordable antennas for on-the-move,
high-data-rate communications in defense
and commercial applications.

Satellite Antenna Testing 
The company is building a second, 
50-foot diameter, space-deployable
antenna for the Asia Cellular Satellite
System that will bring telephone 
services to one billion people in Asia. 

D
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Cockpit Digital Map
Harris is the leading supplier of cockpit
digital moving maps that provide Army,
Navy, Air Force, and Marine pilots with
real-time terrain and target displays.

Weather Systems
Known as the weatherman for the DOD,
Harris is the leading supplier of systems
for defense and the FAA, and is developing
new systems for commercial aviation.

Harris specializes in airborne, 
spaceborne, and ground communications

for the U.S. Government.

An R&D Base for 
Government & Commercial
Communications
Many of today’s commercial 
communication products
had their genesis in technology
designed for sophisticated
government systems. Harris
has almost 50 years of 
experience in government
communication systems and
is a world-class developer 

of antennas, modems, 
image manipulation systems,
and microelectronics for 
classified systems. Harris 
has repositioned its business
to be competitive not only 
as a defense contractor, but
also to provide a steady flow
of product innovations into 
the company’s commercial
businesses.

Transportable Communications 
Developed for the Air Force, this
Lightweight Multiband Satellite Terminal
links forward-deployed forces to command
centers in the U.S. and overseas.

Communications On the Move 
Harris is developing advanced 
antenna systems and other equipment
that will provide the 21st Century
warfighter with the ability to 
communicate anytime, anywhere.



Joint Ventures & Venture First Initiatives

During the past four years, Harris has formed three
joint ventures with General Electric and a fourth with
Sextant In-Flight Systems to create additional organizations
for the exploitation of Harris technology. In each case, the
JV is a union of Harris technology with the market access
created by industry leaders GE and Sextant. Harris also has
created a partnership with a venture capital firm, called
Venture First, to use Harris technologies and cash from
other investors to launch new independent companies.

The JVs and Venture First companies are providing
Harris with some exciting growth opportunities in markets
as diversified as railroads, aviation, energy management,
medicine, and mapping. In general, Harris owns 49 percent
of each joint venture (we account for 49 percent of their
earnings, but receive no credit for sales). The company has
an equity position in each of the Venture First companies
and will realize financial returns as the companies are
sold or go public.

GE Harris Railway Electronics. Advanced 
transportation technology from GE Harris Railway
Electronics is putting railroads on the fast track to 
competitiveness and increased profitability in the 21st
Century. GE Harris Railway Electronics brings a number 
of advanced locomotive, railcar, control, networking,
and planning systems to today’s railroad industry. 

For example, the company’s new PINPOINT technology
gives railroads the ability to track the exact position of
locomotives to within 100 meters – greatly enhancing
productivity, improving safety, and reducing costs. The
company’s wireless TrainTalk product eliminates wire
connectors between railcars by using radio signals to
transmit braking commands evenly along a train. GE
Harris Pacing technology is a migrational step towards
Precision Train Control. Train Pacing combines the capabili-
ties of the Precision Dispatch system and PINPOINT asset
tracking to inform the train engineer of the optimum plan.

GE Harris Energy Control Systems. GE Harris
Energy Control Systems LLC was formed in January 
1997 to address the information technology needs of the
global electric utility industry. This joint venture merged
Harris’ expertise in control systems and communications
technology with the vast marketing and power utility
experience of GE, the world’s largest seller of power
generating equipment.

GE Harris is a world-class supplier of real-time
information and control systems for the generation,
transmission, and distribution of power. GE Harris 
offers a complete line of products and services to meet
the evolving needs of the utility industry for energy 
management, supervisory control and data acquisition,
integrated substation control, substation automation,
distribution automation, and distribution management.

[14]
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Harris has developed additional opportunities 
to exploit its technologies through joint venture 

and Venture First companies.

LiveTV. A joint venture between Sextant In-Flight
Systems and Harris will bring live television transmission
to the seats of airline passengers. jetBlue, which is the
nation’s most heavily capitalized new start airline, will be
one of the first airlines to offer this service when it begins
operations in January 2000.

LiveTV, as the product is called, has enormous
potential, since approximately 70 percent of the aircraft 
flying in the U.S. don’t presently offer any kind of in-flight
entertainment. With LiveTV, attendants simply flip a
switch, and the passengers can access as many as 48 
TV channels on seat-back screens.

GE Harris Aviation Information Solutions.
Aircraft traffic is expected to double by 2025 and 
commercial airliners are looking for opportunities 
to improve efficiencies in a very competitive market. 

GE Harris Aviation Information Solutions offers informa-
tion network products and decision support services that
enable airlines to transmit and receive a wide range of
information – including aircraft, engine, flight deck, and
cabin services data – directly to and from an aircraft. The
new systems and services employ a wireless data link
that can capture and exchange information between the
aircraft and an airport. The Ground Data Link System can
monitor all mechanical and electronic functions aboard
an aircraft while the airplane continues in service.

Venture First Companies. Among the new 
companies Venture First has formed is MedAcoustics,
Inc., which uses “passive acoustic sonar” technology
(originally developed by Harris and the U.S. Navy to track
submarines) as a risk-free, painless, and non-invasive
technique to detect clinically significant blockage in

blood vessels. Other Venture First companies include:
AirNet Communications, which provides cost-effective,
cellular and PCS broadband base stations; Terion, Inc.,
which is developing mobile transportation tracking and
information products; Advanced Geographic Information
Systems, Inc., which provides aerial and satellite image
processing, geographic positioning, and distribution 
services; and AuthenTec, Inc., which is applying next-
generation biometrics chips for accurate, efficient, 
and low-cost fingerprint identification to replace keys,
cards, passwords, and PINs.

The company’s newest Venture First company is
NXTWave Communications, Inc., a fabless chip company
that designs and markets semiconductors used in the 
digital television and other broadband communications
markets.

Advanced Geographic Information
This new company provides aerial 
and satellite image processing and 
distribution.

GE Harris Aviation 
Information Solutions 
The Ground Data Link System
exchanges information between 
an aircraft and the airline.

Live TV
This joint venture will bring live TV 
transmission to the seats of airline 
passengers.

GE Energy Control Systems
These systems manage power generation
by tracking costs, emissions, and power
demands.
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Businesses Directory

Commercial Communications Segment
Microwave Communications Division
Microwave radio networks, wireless local loop 
systems, and broadband wireless access solutions.

Redwood Shores, California
Tel: 1-650-594-3000
Fax: 1-650-594-3110
E-mail: microwave@harris.com

RF Communications Division
HF, VHF, and UHF radio products and systems for 
strategic/tactical and secure communications, 
law enforcement, and air traffic communications.

Rochester, New York
Tel: 1-716-244-5830
Fax: 1-716-242-4755
E-mail: rfcomm@harris.com

Broadcast Communications Division
Analog and digital radio and television 
transmitters and antennas, studio systems, 
and mobile broadcast systems.

Cincinnati, Ohio
Tel: 1-513-459-3400
Fax: 1-513-459-3890
E-mail: broadcast@harris.com

Communications Products Division
Network switching, business communications,
enhanced services switching applications, call 
center solutions, network management and 
test systems, workforce management systems,
and telecommunication test sets and tools.

Novato, California
Tel: 1-415-382-5000
Fax: 1-415-883-1626
E-mail: commprod@harris.com

Government Communications Segment
Government Communications 
Systems Division
Ground communication, command, control, 
and intelligence (C3I) systems; custom aircraft 
and spaceborne communication systems; and 
data processing systems that collect, process, 
display, and distribute information.

Palm Bay, Florida
Tel: 1-407-727-4867
Fax: 1-407-727-4500
E-mail: govt@harris.com

Regional Sales Operations
Harris do Brasil

São Paulo, Brazil
Tel: 55-11-7291-7608
Fax: 55-11-7291-7609

Harris S.A. de C.V.
Mexico City, Mexico
Tel: 525-580-0536
Fax: 525-580-1047

Harris Communications Ltd.
Beijing, China
Tel: 86-10-6510-1880
Fax: 86-10-6510-1870

Harris Corporation
Winnersh, United Kingdom
Tel: 44-1189-69-8787
Fax: 44-1223-214-632

Subsidiaries
Harris Publishing Systems Corporation
Expandable prepress newspaper publishing 
solutions for editorial, page design, advertising,
desktop integration, asset management, and 
the Internet.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-242-5000
Fax: 1-407-242-4074
E-mail: hpscmktg@harris.com
Internet: www.harris.com/hpsc

Harris Technical Services Corporation
Engineering and support services for
the Department of Defense and other 
government agencies.

Alexandria, Virginia
Tel: 1-703-739-1713
Fax: 1-703-739-1779
E-mail: jwensing@harris.com
Internet: www.harris.com/washops

Baseview Products, Incorporated
Prepress publishing solutions for editorial, adver-
tising, circulation, production, and the Internet.

Ann Arbor, Michigan
Tel: 1-734-662-5800
Fax: 1-734-662-5204
E-mail: marketing@baseview.com
Internet: www.baseview.com

Maritime Communication Services, Inc.
Wideband communication services and 
data retrieval from ocean platforms, buoys, 
and vessels as well as telecommunication 
services for remote regions on land.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-674-4750
Fax: 1-407-674-4751
E-mail: info@mcs.harris.com
Internet: www.mcs.harris.com

Harris Joint Ventures
GE Harris Railway Electronics
Advanced electronic communication and control 
systems and products for railroads.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-242-5174
Fax: 1-407-242-5019
E-mail: rjohns25@ge-harris.com
Internet: www.geharris.com

GE Harris Energy Control Systems
Real-time control systems, products, and services to
monitor, control, automate, and optimize the opera-
tions of electric and other public utility companies.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-242-4329
Fax: 1-407-242-4073
E-mail: lrushwor@ccd.harris.com
Internet: www.geharris-ecs.com

GE Harris Aviation Information Solutions
Commercial airline services that transmit and receive
information including aircraft, engine, flight deck, and
cabin services data, directly to and from the aircraft.

Palm Bay, Florida
Tel: 1-407-674-0066
Fax: 1-407-674-0072
E-mail: jim.ziarno@ae.ge.com

LiveTV
Satellite-based and in-seat, in-flight entertainment 
systems, products, and services for commercial 
aircraft worldwide.

Palm Bay, Florida
Tel: 1-407-729-3445
Fax: 1-407-729-7199
E-mail: glenn_latta@mindspring.com
Internet: ifetv.com

Venture First Companies
Air Net Communications Corporation
Designs, manufactures, and markets wireless infrastructure
products including cost-effective, high-capacity, broadband
base stations and the Air Site remote radio, which are
capable of providing maximum coverage at low cost.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-984-1990
Fax: 1-407-953-6607
E-mail: public@aircom.com
Internet: www.aircom.com

Terion, Inc.
Provides comprehensive mobile information products 
and services for targeted domestic and international 
markets.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-752-0288
Fax: 1-407-752-0294
E-mail: corporate@terion.com
Internet: www.terion.com

MedAcoustics, Inc.
Produces non-invasive, passive, acoustical medical imagery
devices for detecting cardiovascular and vascular disorders
using a spatial acoustic sensing system (SASS).

Raleigh, North Carolina
Tel: 1-919-859-9020
Fax: 1-919-859-9030
E-mail: sales-info@medacoustics.com
Internet: www.medacoustics.com

Advanced Geographic Information Systems, Inc.
Provides aerial and satellite image processing and 
distribution services.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-253-0011
Fax: 1-407-253-5559
E-mail: info@agisworld.com
Internet: www.agisworld.com

AuthenTec, Inc.
Provides a next-generation biometric fingerprint technology
capable of being used by everyone, which will replace keys,
cards, passwords and PINs and make security convenient.

Melbourne, Florida
Tel: 1-407-308-1300
Fax: 1-407-308-1430
E-mail: fmoody@authentec.com
Internet: www.authentec.com

NXTWave Communications, Inc.
A fabless chip company that designs and markets semicon-
ductors used in the broadband communications market.

Newtown, Pennsylvania
Tel: 1-215-579-1305
Fax: 1-215-579-8482
E-mail: business@sdcomm.com
Internet: www.sdcomm.com
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The following discussion and analysis provides informa-
tion that management believes is useful in understanding
the Company’s operating results, cash flows, and financial
condition. The discussion is based on the Company’s 
continuing operations and should be read in conjunction
with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes
appearing elsewhere in this report. Except for the histori-
cal information contained here, the discussions in this doc-
ument contain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Harris’ actual results could differ
materially from those discussed here. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not
limited to, those discussed under “Forward-Looking
Statements” below.

Results of Operations
In April 1999, Harris announced that it intends to spin off
its Lanier Worldwide, Inc. subsidiary as an independent,
publicly owned company. Additionally, in April 1999, Harris
announced a plan to sell its semiconductor power business
and, in an effort to maximize the value to the Company of
the semiconductor operations, in June 1999, the board
approved the sale of the entire semiconductor business.
The sale of the semiconductor business was completed on
August 13, 1999. As a result of these actions, the 
Lanier and semiconductor businesses are presented as
discontinued operations within the financial statements
and notes for all periods presented. Continuing operations
are reported under two segments: the Government
Communications segment, which is comprised of the
operations of the former Electronic Systems Sector, and
the Commercial Communications segment, which is com-
prised of the operations of the former Communications
Sector. The following discussion is on a continuing opera-
tions basis and reflects the new segment reporting. In
addition, the operating income of these new segments no

longer includes equity income, royalties, and gains/losses
from the sale of securities and other investments which are
now included in “Other income.” Headquarters expense
that was partially allocated to the operating income of
these segments is now reflected entirely in
“Headquarters expense.”

Fiscal 1999 Compared with 1998
Net Sales and Operating Income – Revenue from 
product sales and services decreased 9.4 percent to $1.74
billion in fiscal 1999, from $1.92 billion in fiscal 1998.
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary
item was $49.9 million, down 24.8 percent from $66.4 
million in fiscal 1998. Income from continuing operations
before extraordinary item in fiscal 1999 included a
restructuring charge for employee reductions of $5.1 
million, a one-time $20.6 million charge for litigation
costs for the settlement of a patent litigation relating to
an older product no longer manufactured by the
Company, and an $18.0 million charge for settlement of
claims and unrecoverable contract development costs 
on two contracts. Prior-year income from continuing
operations includes $16.1 million of restructuring
expenses and a $12.0 million provision for costs associated
with a Malaysian contract. Excluding all of the above
items for both years, income from continuing operations
declined approximately 8 percent in fiscal 1999.

Net sales for the Government Communications 
segment in fiscal 1999 were $813.2 million, 14.5 percent
lower than the prior year, while operating profit increased
18.7 percent to $52.1 million. Excluding prior-year
restructuring charges and unusual long-term contract
charges in both years ($18.0 million in fiscal 1999 and
$19.8 million in fiscal 1998), operating profit increased
10.0 percent in fiscal 1999. Lower sales in the segment’s
information systems and aerospace systems product
lines more than offset growth in the communications 

systems product line. Lower sales in information systems
and aerospace systems was primarily attributable to
declining order backlog. The increase in operating profit
was related to final settlement of prior-year’s overhead
rates and to increased gross margins resulting from a
more favorable contract mix.

Commercial Communications segment sales
decreased 4.5 percent to $930.3 million in fiscal 1999,
from $973.7 million in fiscal 1998. Excluding a fiscal 1999
one-time $20.6 million charge for litigation costs and a 
fiscal 1998 restructuring charge of $8.3 million, operating
profit declined 19.9 percent to $54.7 million from $68.3
million in fiscal 1998. Significantly lower sales and gross
margins in the segment’s microwave radio and digital
switch product lines offset modest improvement in sales
and earnings for the segment’s broadcast equipment 
product line. Lower sales in microwave product lines
resulted primarily from weak international markets and
lower than expected PCS growth in the North American
market. As a result, overcapacity in the industry caused
severe pricing pressures and margin erosion. There also
was a significant reduction in foreign sales for digital
switch products. Sales for the segment’s radio communi-
cations product line were marginally higher than the prior
year while operating profit was relatively unchanged.

Cost of Sales and Services – Cost of sales and
services was $1.28 billion in fiscal 1999. Costs as a 
percentage of sales decreased from 75.0 percent in fiscal
1998 to 73.3 percent in fiscal 1999. The decrease was
primarily attributable to improved gross margins in the
Company’s Government Communications segment, which
were partially offset by the decline in the gross margins in
the Commercial Communications segment.

Operating Expenses – Engineering, selling, and
administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were 22
percent in 1999, up slightly from 21.9 percent in the prior
year. Higher expenditures for marketing and Company-

Financial Review

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations



[18]

sponsored research and development were offset by 
lower administrative expenses for the year. Headquarters
expense, which is included in administrative expenses,
was $28.4 million lower than fiscal 1998 due to  lower
expenses associated with employee benefit plans and a
continued emphasis on cost controls.

Other Income and Expense – Interest expense
was lower in fiscal 1999 due to a lower level of borrow-
ings from continuing operations in fiscal 1999 compared 
to fiscal 1998. Interest expense is allocated to the
Company’s discontinued operations based upon the 
capital employed by the business. Interest expense
before allocations to discontinued operations increased
from $73.2 million to $84.0 million due to higher 
borrowings and higher interest rates. 

“Other income” was $38.3 million lower in fiscal
1999 due primarily to lower amounts of gains from the sale
of investment securities and lower royalty income 
compared to fiscal 1998.

The provision for income taxes from continuing 
operations as a percentage of income before income taxes
was 36.0 percent in both fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998. The
increase from the statutory U.S. income tax rate of 35.0
percent in both years was due primarily to provisions for
state income taxes. 

Selected financial information relating to geographical
regions and export sales is set forth in the note “Business
Segment” in the Notes to Financial Statements.

Fiscal 1998 Compared with 1997
Net Sales and Operating Income – Sales in fiscal 1998
decreased 1.2 percent while income from continuing 
operations increased 3.3 percent. Income from continu-
ing operations for fiscal 1998 included fourth quarter
restructuring and other one-time charges of $28.1 million
($18.1 million after tax). Excluding these charges, income
from continuing operations increased 31.4 percent to
$84.5 million. Restructuring charges of $16.1 million
($10.1 million after tax) were incurred for reduction of
personnel and write-off of assets related to the exit of

several product lines. These charges are discussed below
in more detail. Fiscal 1998 income also included a 
provision of $12.0 million ($8.0 million after tax) for costs
related to a contract of the Government Communications
segment with an agency of the Malaysian government.
This provision related to additional contract costs
incurred in the fourth quarter and the effect of the
Malaysian monetary crisis. The Malaysian monetary 
crisis was primarily driven by a high level of domestic
indebtedness. The Malaysian government’s solution was to
cut expenditures, thus putting pressure on all government
agencies to constrain their spending. The crisis, which
negatively impacted the Company’s contract in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 1998, culminated in the Malaysian 
government’s decision to impose capital controls in
September 1998 which further disrupted Asian financial
markets. At that time, the official exchange rate to the
dollar was fixed at 3.8 Ringgits and foreign exchange
trade was severely limited. The Malaysian government’s
intent was to prevent capital from flowing out of the
country. Since the agency was required to constrict
expenditures due to the economic crisis, the resulting
environment makes contract negotiations difficult.
Segment results, as discussed below, exclude the fiscal
1998 restructuring and other one-time charges.

Government Communications segment net sales
were $951.1 million, 4.6 percent lower than fiscal 1997,
while operating profit before restructuring and other one-
time charges declined 24.8 percent to $63.7 million.
Reduced sales in the segment’s air traffic control and
aerospace systems businesses more than offset growth
in the segment’s information systems business.

Commercial Communications segment sales
increased 2.3 percent to $973.7 million in fiscal 1998, while
operating profit before restructuring expenses declined by
7.3 percent to $68.3 million from $73.7 million in fiscal
1997. Significant sales and earnings improvement in the
segment’s digital switch and telephone test equipment
businesses helped offset the impact of substantially lower
earnings in the segment’s microwave radio business, due
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*Excludes $9.2 million extraordinary loss from early retirement of debt.
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to the slowdown in the PCS market. Sales of the segment’s
broadcast equipment products were slightly ahead of 
fiscal 1997 while operating profit was relatively
unchanged. Operating profit for the segment’s radio 
communications products was slightly ahead of the prior
year on flat sales. Segment earnings also benefited from
substantially higher gains from the sale of investment
securities and higher royalty income.

Cost of Sales and Services – Cost of sales and
services as a percentage of sales was 75.0 percent in both
fiscal 1998 and 1997. Cost of product sales and services in
fiscal 1998 includes a write-down of $15.0 million for
inventory relating to product lines that were exited and
$12.0 million for cost associated with the Malaysian 
contract. Improved operating margins in the Company’s
Commercial Communications segment offset lower 
margins in the Government Communications segment.

Operating Expenses – Engineering, selling, and
administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
increased from 20.5 percent in fiscal 1997 to 21.9 percent
in fiscal 1998. Higher marketing expense and an increase
in company-sponsored research and development resulted
in the increased operating expense ratio. Headquarters
expense, which is included in administrative expenses,
was $11.0 million lower than fiscal 1997 due primarily to
lower employee benefit plan expenses. 

Other Income and Expenses – Interest expense
was lower in fiscal 1998 due to a lower level of borrowings
from continuing operations in fiscal 1998 compared to 
fiscal 1997. Interest expense is allocated to the Company’s
discontinued operations based upon the capital employed
by the business. Interest expense before allocations to 
discontinued operations increased $13.3 million due to
higher average borrowings and a lower amount of interest
capitalized on new construction projects.

“Other income” was $26.8 million higher in fiscal 1998
due to gains resulting from the sale of investment securi-
ties, higher royalty income, and higher interest income.

The provision for income taxes from continuing oper-
ations was 36.0 percent of income before income taxes in

fiscal 1998 and 35.2 percent in fiscal 1997. The increase
from the statutory U.S. income tax rate of 35.0 percent in
both years was due primarily to state income taxes.

Restructuring
In fiscal 1999, the Company announced the pending sale of
its semiconductor business and the intended spin-off of its
Lanier Worldwide subsidiary. These businesses represent
approximately half of the Company’s fiscal 1998 revenues.
To properly align the Company’s administrative and support
functions to the remaining businesses, management
announced a reduction in workforce of 738 employees, for
which a restructuring charge of $5.1 million was recorded
($3.3 million after tax). The Company plans to substantially
complete these reductions during the first half of fiscal
year 2000. Employee severance benefits are expected to
be paid ratably over the fiscal year from existing cash
sources. Labor cost savings are expected to be approxi-
mately $29 million per full fiscal year, most of which
should be realized in fiscal 2000. These savings will be 
partially offset by other expenditures (e.g., consulting fees)
relating to the Company’s repositioning efforts.

In fiscal 1998, the Company recorded restructuring
charges of $16.1 million ($10.1 million after tax) for the
reduction of personnel and the write-off of assets related
to the exit of several product lines. Components of the
restructuring charge include $3.8 million for workforce
reductions and $12.3 million for costs associated with the
exit of product lines.

Product line exit costs include $9.0 million for 
the write-off of capitalized software, $1.0 million for
equipment write-offs, and $2.3 million for other exit costs.
Product line exit costs are primarily noncash charges.
Anticipated cost savings from reduced depreciation and
amortization will be approximately $3.0 million in fiscal
1999 through 2001.

Product line exits include analog base stations,
wirefree communication devices, and transportation
tracking systems. The Company discontinued these 
businesses in fiscal 1999. Manufacturing assets 

associated with these businesses were not significant
and were redeployed to other product lines.

Sales from exited product lines were $13.4 million in
1998 and $23.1 million in 1997. Operating profit from these
product lines was not material.

Financial Condition
Cash Position – At July 2, 1999, cash and cash equiva-
lents totaled $86 million, a decrease from $102 million
at July 3, 1998. Marketable securities were $16 million
at July 2, 1999.

Cash Flows – Cash provided by operating activities
in fiscal 1999 was $253 million, down from $445 million in
the prior year due to decreased income from discontinued
operations (net of items not affecting cash) and payments
of income taxes. Partially offsetting this decrease in oper-
ating cash flow was positive cash flow from other working
capital accounts. Net cash used in investing activities in
fiscal 1999 was $27 million, which was $385 million lower
than fiscal 1998 primarily due to a decrease of cash used
for discontinued operations. Cash used for financing 
activities was $244 million, which was significantly higher
than fiscal 1998 due to payments on borrowings.

Receivables, Unbilled Costs, and Inventories –
Receivables amounted to $412 million at July 2, 1999, an
increase of $65 million from July 3, 1998. Unbilled costs
and inventories decreased $73 million from the prior year
to $390 million. This decrease reflects a substantial 
reduction in unbilled costs within the Government
Communications segment.

Borrowing Arrangements – At July 2, the Company
had available $750 million syndicated credit facilities.
Under these agreements, $404.2 million was outstanding
at July 2, 1999. The Company also has available 
$77.3 million in open bank credit lines, of which $57.8 
million was available July 2, 1999. Some of these 
syndicated credit facilities were repaid in the first 
quarter of fiscal 2000 from proceeds of the sale of the
semiconductor business.
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Capitalization – At July 2, 1999, debt totaled $839 
million, representing 34.5 percent of total capitalization
(defined as the sum of total debt plus shareholders’ 
equity). A year earlier, debt of $995 million was 37.8 
percent of total capitalization. Year-end long-term debt
included $350 million of debentures, $163 million of notes
payable to banks, and $2 million of other long-term debt.
In fiscal 1999, the Company retired $150 million of publicly
traded debentures and prepaid about $96 million of 
insurance syndicate debt.

In 1999, the Company issued 222,307 shares of 
common stock to employees under the terms of the
Company’s stock purchase, option, and incentive plans.

The Company debt is currently rated “A” (or its 
equivalent) by the debt rating services; however, the
Company expects that, after the disposition of discontinued
operations, debt ratings will be lowered. The Company
expects to maintain operating ratios, fixed charge coverage
ratios, and balance sheet ratios sufficient for retention 
of its expected new lower debt ratings.

Cash received from the sale of the discontinued
semiconductor business is expected to be used to reduce
indebtedness and for other general corporate purposes
including acquisitions and repurchases of the Company’s
common stock. The Company also anticipates a signifi-
cant reduction in total debt as a result of the spin-off of
the Lanier Worldwide business. Cash received in the
spin-off also will be used for acquisitions, repurchases of
stock, tax payments that will exceed income tax expense
in fiscal 2000, and for general corporate purposes.

Retirement Plans – Retirement benefits for 
substantially all of the Company’s employees are provided
primarily through a retirement plan having profit-sharing
and savings elements. The Company also provides limited
health-care benefits to retirees who have 10 or more years
of service. All obligations under the Company’s retirement
plans have been fully funded by the Company’s contribu-
tions, the provision for which totaled $43.0 million during
fiscal 1999.

Deferred Income Taxes – The liability for non-
current deferred income taxes was $47 million at July 2,
1999, unchanged from a year earlier.

Impact of Foreign Exchange – Approximately 
50 percent of the Company’s international business is
transacted in local currency environments. The impact of
translating the assets and liabilities of these operations to
U.S. dollars is included as a component of shareholders’
equity. At July 2, 1999, the cumulative translation 
adjustment reduced shareholders’ equity by $12 million 
compared to a reduction of $10 million at July 3, 1998.

The Company utilizes foreign currency hedging
instruments to minimize the currency risk of international
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from currency
rate fluctuations did not have a material effect on the
Company’s results in 1999, 1998, or 1997.

Impact of Inflation – To the extent feasible, 
the Company has consistently followed the practice of
adjusting its prices to reflect the impact of inflation on
wages and salaries for employees and the cost of 
purchased materials and services.

Capital Expenditures – Capital expenditures
were $27 million lower in fiscal 1999 due to decreased
expenditures at the headquarters, where prior-year
expenditures included the purchase of an aircraft.

Market Risk Management
The Company, in the normal course of doing business, is
exposed to the risks associated with foreign currency
exchange rates, fluctuations in the market value of its 
marketable equity securities available for sale, and
changes in the interest rates. The Company employs
established policies and procedures governing the use of
financial instruments to manage its exposure to such risks.

The Company uses foreign exchange contracts and
options to hedge both balance sheet and off-balance sheet
foreign currency commitments. Specifically, these foreign
exchange contracts offset foreign currency denominated
inventory and purchase commitments from suppliers, and
accounts receivable from, and future committed sales to,
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customers and intercompany loans. Management
believes the use of foreign currency financial instruments
should reduce the risks that arise from doing business in
international markets. Contracts are generally one year or
less. At July 2, 1999, the Company had open foreign
exchange contracts with a notional amount of $37 
million, of which $8 million was to hedge off-balance
sheet commitments. At July 3, 1998, the Company had
open foreign exchange contracts with a notional amount
of $27 million, of which $22 million was to hedge off-
balance sheet commitments. Additionally, for the fiscal
year ended July 2, 1999, the Company purchased and
sold $366 million of foreign exchange forward and option 
contracts, compared to $257 million for the prior year.
Reference is made to the note “Financial Instruments” in
the Notes to Financial Statements for further information
with respect to commitments to buy or sell foreign 
currencies. The Company’s hedging activities provide only
limited protection against currency exchange risks.
Factors that could impact the effectiveness of the
Company’s hedging programs include accuracy of sales
estimates, volatility of currency markets, and the cost
and availability of hedging instruments. A 10 percent
adverse change in currency exchange rates for the
Company’s foreign currency derivatives held July 2, 1999,
would have an impact of approximately $3.5 million on
the fair value of such instruments. This quantification of
exposure to the market risk associated with foreign
exchange financial instruments does not take into
account the offsetting impact of changes in the fair value
of the Company’s foreign denominated assets, liabilities,
and firm commitments.

The Company also maintains a portfolio of 
marketable equity securities available for sale. These
investments result from the funding of start-up companies
that have technology or products that are of interest to the
Company. The fair market value of these securities at July
2, 1999, was $16 million, compared to $30 million in the
prior year. This reduction was due to a decrease in these
securities’ quoted market price and the Company’s partial

liquidation of these investments. The corresponding unre-
alized gain is included as a component of shareholders’
equity. These investments have historically had higher
volatility than most market indices. A 10 percent adverse
change in the quoted market price of marketable equity
securities would have an impact of approximately $1.6 mil-
lion on the fair market value of these securities.

The Company utilizes a balanced mix of debt 
maturities along with both fixed-rate and variable-rate
debt to manage its exposure to changes in interest rates.
The Company does not expect changes in interest rates to
have a material effect on income or cash flows in fiscal
2000, although there can be no assurances that interest
rates will not significantly change.

Environmental Matters
Harris is actively engaged in complying with environmental
protection laws. In addition to ongoing internal compliance
programs, an estimated $0.3 million was spent on envi-
ronmental capital projects in fiscal 1999 and $1.7 million in
fiscal 1998. The Company estimates that it will authorize 
$0.1 million in fiscal 2000 for environmental-related 
capital projects. Under the Superfund Act or similar state
environmental laws, the Company also has potential 
liability at various waste sites designated for clean-up. The
Company is named as a potentially responsible party (PRP)
at nine such sites where future liabilities could exist.
These sites include four Company owned sites and five
non-Company owned treatment or disposal sites, allegedly
containing hazardous substances attributable to the
Company from past operations. The Company routinely
assesses its contingencies, obligations, and commitments
to clean up and monitor sites in light of in-depth studies,
analysis by environmental experts, and legal reviews. 
At the four Company owned sites, the Company is involved
primarily in monitoring and remediation programs that
have been implemented in cooperation with various 
environmental agencies. At the other sites, the Company is
involved as one of numerous PRPs. In ascertaining 
environmental exposures, management must assess the

extent of contamination, the nature of remedial actions,
continually evolving governmental standards, and the 
number, participation level, and financial viability of other
PRPs and other similar variables. Based upon internal and
third-party studies, as well as the remediation and 
monitoring expense history at the four Company owned
sites, the number and solvency of PRPs at the other sites
and an assessment of other relevant factors, the Company
has estimated that its “undiscounted” liability under the
Superfund Act and other environmental statutes and 
regulations for identified sites, using a 6 percent discount
rate, is approximately $5.1 million. The Company has
accrued these discounted liabilities. The expected 
aggregate undiscounted amount that will be incurred over
the next 20 to 30 years (depending on the number of years
for each site) is approximately $9.3 million. The expected
payments for each of the next five years are approximately
$0.4 million per year; the aggregate amount thereafter is
approximately $7.3 million.

Year 2000 Issue
The year 2000 statements set forth below are designated
as “Year 2000 Readiness Disclosures” pursuant to the Year
2000 Information and Readiness Disclosure Act. 

Certain software and hardware systems are time 
sensitive. Older time-sensitive systems often use a two-
digit dating convention (e.g., “00” rather than “2000”) that
could result in system failure and disruption of operations
as the year 2000 approaches. The Year 2000 problem will
impact the Company, its vendors and suppliers, customers,
and other third parties that interface with the Company.

With regard to the Year 2000 problem, 234 project 
initiatives of varying magnitudes have been identified
throughout the Company and its continuing businesses.
These initiatives relate to four basic aspects of the
Company and its business operations: (1) internal 
information technology systems, including sales order
processing, contract management, financial systems, and
service management; (2) internal non-information 
technology systems, including office equipment and test
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equipment; (3) products and services; and (4) material
third-party relationships. Each project has been assigned
a leader and prioritized based on the size of the task and
the perceived business risk. A steering team comprised
of senior management in key functional areas, including
accounting, finance, legal, quality and new processes,
and information management, has been established to
monitor and oversee the progress of each project. Most
of these projects have been completed, including proj-
ects with the greatest complexity and impact.

Internal Information Technology Systems – The
Company is in the process of replacing or outsourcing many
of its time-sensitive software systems and has software
programs for reprogramming other time-sensitive software
and equipment. 

Internal Non-Information Technology Systems –
The Company believes that a limited number of its non-
information technology systems, such as office equipment
and machinery, and date-sensitive software and embedded
microprocessors, may be affected. The company believes
that the exposure related to non-information technology is
minimal and disruption of any of these systems will not
materially inhibit the Company’s ability to conduct 
business operations.

Products – The Company has initiated formal 
programs to advise and work with customers to resolve
Year 2000 problems. However, the Company believes it
has no material exposure to contingencies related to the
Year 2000 issue for the products it has sold. The Company
has Year 2000 exposure in its operating systems and 
business systems including engineering, manufacturing,
order fulfillment, program management, financial, and
administrative functions. The greatest potential risk from
the year 2000 issue could be the Company’s inability to
meet commitment dates on delivery of products. The
Company has focused the majority of its efforts and 
dedicated resources to address this issue. In addition, the
Company believes that a limited number of non-
information technology systems, such as manufacturing
machinery, equipment, and test equipment with date-

sensitive software and embedded microprocessors, may
be affected and evaluation and remediation are underway.

Material Third-Party Relationships – The Company
also has initiated communications with significant suppliers,
customers, and other relevant third parties to identify 
and minimize disruptions to operations and to assist in
resolving Year 2000 issues. However, there can be no 
certainty that the systems and products of companies on
which the Company relies will not have an adverse effect
on the Company’s operations.

The Company believes it is diligently addressing 
the Year 2000 issues and will satisfactorily resolve 
significant Year 2000 problems. Final remediation action is
approaching closure on certain secondary projects and is
scheduled for completion during the first half of fiscal
2000. Although all projects are scheduled for near-term
completion, general and specific contingency plans are
being developed to mitigate risks. The estimated cost
incurred for resolving Year 2000 issues was approximately
$20 million for continuing businesses. These costs were
generally not incremental to existing information technol-
ogy budgets. The largest portion of this expenditure was
used to replace existing software and hardware. Estimates
of Year 2000 related costs are based on numerous
assumptions, and there is no certainty that estimates will
be achieved. Actual costs could be materially greater 
than anticipated. Specific factors that might cause such
differences include, but are not limited to, the continuing
availability of personnel trained in this area, the ability to
identify and correct all relevant computer programs in a
timely manner, and similar uncertainties.

The Company is working to identify and analyze the
most likely worst-case scenarios, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to 
provide products and services to its customers. These 
possible scenarios include the failure of water and power
supplies, the failure of communications and financial 
systems, major transportation disruptions, and lack of Year
2000 readiness of third-party vendors and customers. The
Company continues to develop contingency plans 
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to address potential Year 2000 problems relating to the
infrastructure and the Company’s business partners. These
plans are expected to be completed during the first quarter
of fiscal 2000. Despite such efforts, an infrastructure 
problem or combination of the above-mentioned Year 2000
problems not within the Company’s control could have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s business and its
results of operations.

Euro Conversion 
On January 1, 1999, certain member nations of the EMU
adopted a common currency, the Euro. For a three-year
transition period, both the Euro and individual participants’
currencies will remain in circulation. After January 1, 2002,
the Euro will be the sole legal tender for EMU countries.
The adoption of the Euro affects a multitude of financial
systems and business applications as the commerce of
these nations will be transacted in the Euro and the existing
national currency. For fiscal year 1999, approximately 
2 percent of the Company’s revenues were derived from
EMU countries.

The Company is currently addressing Euro-related
issues and their impact on information systems, currency
exchange rate risk, taxation, contracts, competition, and
pricing. For the fiscal year ended July 2, 1999, the
Company did not experience an adverse impact or material
expense related to the adoption of the Euro. All costs 
associated with the adoption of the Euro have been
expensed by the Company as incurred. The Company
expects to complete the Euro-related systems conversion
during the quarter ending October 1, 1999.

Outlook
With focus shifting to a pure communication business,
the Company believes that its fourth quarter repositioning
actions will result in both revenue and earnings growth in
fiscal 2000. These actions include both the reduction of
administrative cost and the realignment of the Company’s
continuing operations. Excluding fiscal 1999 unusual
charges, the Company expects revenue and operating

profit to be lower in the first half of the year due to 
continuing weakness in the Government Communications
segment. For the full fiscal year 2000, the Company
expects that the Government Communications segment
will experience a moderate decline in operating profit on
higher revenues. Significant growth in the broadcast 
products business and continuing improvement in 
the microwave products and communications products
businesses should result in earnings and sales growth
during fiscal 2000 for the Commercial Communications
segment.

Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains, and certain of the Company’s other
public documents and statements and oral statements
contain and will contain, forward-looking statements that
reflect management’s current expectations, assumptions
and estimates of future performance and economic 
conditions. Such statements are made in reliance upon
the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. The Company cautions investors that any 
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties that may cause actual results and future
trends to differ materially from those projected, stated, or
implied by the forward-looking statements.

The Company’s consolidated results and the forward-
looking statements could be affected by many factors,
including general economic conditions in the markets in
which the Company operates; economic developments
that have a particularly adverse effect on one or more 
of the markets served by the Company; the ability to 
execute management’s repositioning as a pure communi-
cations company (including management’s plan to modify
its internal structure and divest non-core businesses); the
ability to realize cost savings from the Company’s internal
reorganization; stability of key markets for communications
products, particularly Asia and Brazil; fluctuation in foreign
currency exchange rates and the effectiveness of the
Company’s currency hedging program; reductions in the

U.S. and worldwide defense and space budgets; effect of
continuing consolidation in the U.S. defense industry on
the Company’s direct and indirect business with the U.S.
government; the Company’s ability to receive contract
awards; continued development and market acceptance of
new products, especially digital television broadcast prod-
ucts; continued success of the Company’s patent licensing
programs; the ability of the Company, its customers, and
suppliers to become Year 2000 compliant; and the 
successful resolution of patent infringement and other
general litigation. Other factors that may impact the 
Company’s results and forward-looking statements may be
disclosed in the Company’s filings with the SEC. The
Company disclaims any intention or obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Harris Common Stock Information
Dividends – Quarterly dividends of 24 cents per share
were paid throughout fiscal 1999. During the year, 5,002
shareholders participated in the Company’s Automatic
Dividend Reinvestment Plan with resulting purchases of
38,066 shares.

Markets for Harris Securities – The Company’s
Common Stock is traded on the New York, Boston,
Chicago, Pacific, and Philadelphia Stock Exchanges under
the symbol HRS. During fiscal 1999, a total volume of 85.8
million shares of Harris stock was traded, representing 
an average of 340,500 shares each day. This volume 
compares with the previous year’s total of 60.3 million
shares, and a daily average of 239,375.

Both put and call options on Harris shares are traded
on the Chicago Board Options Exchange.

[23]
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Financial Statements

(In millions except per share amounts) 1999 1998 1997

Revenue
Revenue from product sales and services $ 1,743.5 $ 1,924.8 $1,948.6

Costs and Expenses
Cost of product sales and services 1,278.3 1,443.5 1,460.7
Engineering, selling and administrative expenses 384.3 420.7 399.9
Restructuring expenses 5.1 16.1 –
Special charge for litigation costs 20.6 – –
Interest expense 9.8 12.5 23.8
Interest income (13.3) (14.1) (4.2)
Other income (19.3) (57.6) (30.8)

1,665.5 1,821.1 1,849.4
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 78.0 103.7 99.2
Income taxes 28.1 37.3 34.9
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item 49.9 66.4 64.3
Discontinued operations net of income taxes 12.4 66.6 143.2 
Income before extraordinary item 62.3 133.0 207.5
Extraordinary loss from early retirement of debt net of income taxes (9.2) – –
Net income $ 53.1 $ 133.0 $ 207.5

Net income per common share
Basic:

Continuing operations before extraordinary item $ .63 $ .84 $ .82
Discontinued operations .16 .84 1.84
Extraordinary loss (.12) – –

$ .67 $ 1.68 $ 2.66
Diluted:

Continuing Operations $ .63 $ .83 $ .81 
Discontinued Operations .16 .83 1.82 
Extraordinary loss (.12) – –

$ .67 $ 1.66 $ 2.63 

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statement of Income Fiscal years ended
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(In millions) July 2, 1999 July 3, 1998

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 85.7 $ 101.5
Marketable securities 15.5 30.0
Receivables 411.7 347.0
Unbilled costs and accrued earnings on fixed-price contracts 184.4 247.0
Inventories 205.7 216.4
Deferred income taxes 128.4 111.3

Total current assets 1,031.4 1,053.2

Other Assets
Plant and equipment 291.6 314.8
Intangibles resulting from acquisitions 72.8 69.8
Net assets of discontinued operations 1,293.2 1,534.5
Other assets 269.6 258.1

1,927.2 2,177.2
$ 2,958.6 $ 3,230.4

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Short-term debt $ 323.7 $ 180.0
Accounts payable 154.3 121.7 
Compensation and benefits 103.2 126.9 
Other accrued items 113.9 117.8 
Unearned income and advance payments by customers 84.9 102.9 
Income taxes 26.8 81.1 
Current portion of long-term debt .5 54.2 

Total current liabilities 807.3 784.6 

Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 47.3 47.4 
Long-term debt 514.5 761.0 

Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock, without par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued – –
Common Stock, $1.00 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized; issued and 

outstanding 79,650,994 shares in 1999 and 80,012,625 shares in 1998 79.7 80.0 
Other capital 271.5 271.3 
Retained earnings 1,246.7 1,282.8
Unearned compensation (4.0) (3.2)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (4.4) 6.5 

Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,589.5 1,637.4
$ 2,958.6 $ 3,230.4

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
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(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Operating Activities
Income from continuing operations $ 49.9 $ 66.4 $ 64.3 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 63.5 61.9 62.8 
Non-current deferred income tax (0.1) 28.5 4.4 
Extraordinary loss (9.2) – – 
Income from discontinued operations-net of items not effecting cash 184.7 246.4 281.7 

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts and notes receivable (55.1) (12.6) (113.8)
Unbilled costs and inventories 87.0 59.9 75.7 

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payables and accrued expenses 5.4 29.7 (16.6)
Advance payments and unearned income (18.0) (43.2) 1.7 
Income taxes (73.1) .2 (0.9)

Other 17.6 7.8 (3.1)
Net cash provided by operating activities 252.6 445.0 356.2 

Investing Activities
Cash paid for acquired businesses (35.7) – (11.9)
Additions of plant and equipment (60.4) (87.3) (67.6)
Net assets of discontinued operations 69.1 (324.2) (433.2)

Net cash used in investing activities (27.0) (411.5) (512.7)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 9,301.4 5,391.1 6,416.8
Payment of borrowings (9,457.9) (5,332.7) (6,213.9)
Proceeds from sale of Common Stock 4.4 12.1 10.8 
Purchase of Common Stock for treasury (15.7) – –
Cash dividends (76.5) (70.1) (60.3)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (244.3) 0.4 153.4 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2.9 0.4 1.3 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (15.8) 34.3 (1.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 101.5 67.2 69.0 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 85.7 $ 101.5 $ 67.2 

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Fiscal years ended
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Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income

Net Unrealized Cumulative
Common Other Retained Unearned Gain on Translation

(In millions) Stock Capital Earnings Compensation Securities Adjustments Total

Balance at July 1, 1996 $38.9 $266.0 $1,072.7 $ .3 $ (1.4) $ (3.7) $1,372.8
Net income – – 207.5 – – – 207.5
Foreign currency translation – – – – – (1.7) (1.7)
Net unrealized gain on securities net of income taxes of $27.4 – – – – 46.7 – 46.7
Comprehensive income 252.5
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan (254,690 shares) .1 4.4 – – – – 4.5 
Shares granted under Stock Incentive Plans (251,900 shares) .1 7.5 – (7.6) – – –
Compensation expense – – – 12.9 – – 12.9 
Termination and award of shares granted under 

Stock Incentive Plans (200,450 shares) (.1) (.9) – (1.2) – – (2.2)
Shares sold under Employee Stock Purchase Plans (185,712 shares) .1 6.2 – – – – 6.3
Shares issued for acquisition of company (1,390,610 shares) .7 6.7 – – – – 7.4
Cash dividends ($.76 per share) – – (60.3) – – – (60.3)
Balance at June 27, 1997 39.8 289.9 1,219.9 4.4 45.3 (5.4) 1,593.9
Net income – – 133.0 – – – 133.0 
Foreign currency translation – – – – – (4.4) (4.4)
Net unrealized loss on securities net of income taxes of $(17.0) – – – – (29.0) – (29.0)
Comprehensive income 99.6 
Two-for-one stock split (39,949,231 shares) 39.9 (39.9) – – – – –
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan (237,476 shares) .2 5.6 – – – – 5.8 
Shares granted under Stock Incentive Plans (238,550 shares) .3 10.1 – (10.3) – – .1 
Compensation expense – – – 7.8 – – 7.8 
Termination and award of shares granted under 

Stock Incentive Plans (340,174 shares) (.3) (.5) – (5.1) – – (5.9)
Shares sold under Employee Stock Purchase Plans (114,707 shares) .1 6.1 – – – – 6.2 
Cash dividends ($.88 per share) – – (70.1) – – – (70.1)
Balance at July 3, 1998 80.0 271.3 1,282.8 (3.2) 16.3 (9.8) 1,637.4
Net income – – 53.1 – – – 53.1
Foreign currency translation – – – – – (1.9) (1.9)
Net unrealized loss on securities net of income taxes of $(5.3) – – – – (9.0) – (9.0)
Comprehensive income 42.2 
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan (100,945 shares) .1 2.5 – – – – 2.6 
Shares granted under Stock Incentive Plans (67,400 shares) .1 2.2 – (2.3) – – –
Compensation expense – – – (.2) – – (.2)
Termination and award of shares granted under Stock 

Incentive Plans (153,738 shares) (.2) (3.6) – 1.7 – – (2.1)
Shares sold under Employee Stock Purchase Plans (53,962 shares) .1 1.7 – – – – 1.8 
Purchase and retirement of Common Stock for treasury 

(430,200 shares) (.4) (2.6) (12.7) – – – (15.7)
Cash dividends ($.96 per share) – – (76.5) – – – (76.5)
Balance at July 2, 1999 $79.7 $271.5 $1,246.7 $ (4.0) $ 7.3 $(11.7) $1,589.5

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Shareholders’ Equity
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Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation – The consolidated finan-
cial statements include the accounts of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
and require management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabil-
ities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant intercompany transactions and accounts have
been eliminated.

Fiscal Year – In 1997, the Company changed its 
fiscal year to end on the Friday nearest June 30. Fiscal
years prior to 1997 ended on June 30. Fiscal years 1999
and 1997 include 52 weeks, while 1998 fiscal year
includes 53 weeks.

Cash Equivalents – Cash equivalents are temporary
cash investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased. These investments include accrued
interest and are carried at the lower of cost or market.

Marketable Securities – Marketable equity 
securities are stated at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses, net of tax, included as a separate component
of shareholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses from
marketable securities are determined using the specific
identification method. The cost basis of marketable securi-
ties was $3.9 million at July 2, 1999, and $4.2 million at
July 3, 1998. The amount of gross realized gains included
in income from continuing operations was $9.6 million in
1999, $38.8 million in 1998 and $19.4 million in 1997.

Inventories – Inventories are priced at the lower
of cost (determined by average and first-in, first-out
methods) or market.

Plant and Equipment – Plant and equipment are
carried on the basis of cost. Depreciation of buildings,
machinery and equipment is computed by straight-line 
and accelerated methods. The estimated useful lives of
buildings range between 5 and 50 years. The estimated
useful lives of machinery and equipment range between 
3 and 10 years.

Intangibles – Intangibles resulting from acquisitions
are being amortized by the straight-line method principally
over 15 years. Recoverability of intangibles is assessed
using estimated undiscounted cash flows of related oper-
ations. Intangibles that are not expected to be recovered
through future undiscounted cash flows are charged to
expense when identified. Amounts charged to expense are
amounts in excess of the fair value of the intangible asset.
Fair value is determined as the present value of estimated
expected future cash flows using a discount rate commen-
surate with the risks involved.

Income Taxes – The Company follows the liability
method of accounting for income taxes.

Revenue Recognition – Revenue is recognized
from sales other than on long-term contracts when a
product is shipped, from rentals as they accrue, and from
services when performed. Unearned income on service
contracts is amortized by the straight-line method over
the term of the contracts.

Revenue and anticipated profits under long-term
contracts are recorded on a percentage-of-completion
basis, generally using the cost-to-cost method of
accounting where sales and profits are recorded based
on the ratio of costs incurred to estimated total costs at
completion. Contracts are combined when specific
aggregation criteria are met. Criteria generally include
closely interrelated activities performed for a single 
customer within the same economic environment.
Contracts generally are not segmented.

Amounts representing contract change orders,
claims or other items are included in sales only when
they can be reliably estimated and realization is probable.
Incentives or penalties and awards applicable to perform-
ance on contracts are considered in estimating sales and
profit rates, and are recorded when there is sufficient
information to assess anticipated contract performance.
Incentive provisions which increase or decrease earnings
based solely on a single significant event are generally
not recognized until the event occurs.

When adjustments in contract value or estimated
costs are determined, any changes from prior estimates
are reflected in earnings in the current period. Anticipated
losses on contracts or programs in progress are charged to
earnings when identified.

Royalty income is included as a component of “Other-
income” and is recognized on the basis of terms specified
in contractual settlement agreements.

Retirement Benefits – The Company and its 
subsidiaries provide retirement benefits to substantially all
employees primarily through a retirement plan having 
profit-sharing and savings elements. Contributions by the
Company to the retirement plan are based on profits and
employees’ savings with no other funding requirements.
The Company may make additional contributions to the
fund at its discretion.

Retirement benefits also include an unfunded limited
healthcare plan for U.S.-based retirees and employees on
long-term disability. The Company accrues the estimated
cost of these medical benefits, which are not material, 
during an employee’s active service life.

Environmental Expenditures – The Company 
capitalizes environmental expenditures that increase 
the life or efficiency of property or that reduce or prevent
environmental contamination. The Company accrues 
environmental expenses resulting from existing conditions
that relate to past operations when the costs are probable
and reasonably estimable.

Based on an assessment of relevant factors, the
Company has estimated that its discounted liability under
the Superfund Act and other environmental statutes and
regulations for identified sites, using a 6 percent discount
rate, is approximately $5.1 million. This liability is accrued
in the July 2, 1999, consolidated balance sheet. The
expected aggregate undiscounted amount that will be
incurred over the next 20 to 30 years (depending on the
number of years for each site) is approximately $9.3 
million. The expected payments for each of the next five
years are approximately $0.4 million per year and the 
aggregate amount thereafter is approximately $7.3 million.

Futures and Forward Contracts – When the
Company sells products outside the United States or
enters into purchase commitments, transactions are 
frequently denominated in currencies other than U.S.
dollars. To minimize the impact on revenue and cost from
currency fluctuations, the Company enters into currency
exchange agreements that qualify for hedge accounting
treatment. It is the Company’s policy not to speculate in
foreign currencies. Currency exchange agreements are

Notes to Financial Statements
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designated as, and are effective as, hedges of foreign
currency assets and liabilities. In addition, these 
agreements are consistent with the designated currency
of the underlying asset or liability. Gains and losses on
currency exchange agreements that qualify as hedges
are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the 
carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability. Gains
and losses on currency exchange agreements that do not
qualify as hedges are recognized in income based on
changes in the fair market value of the currency
exchange agreement.

Foreign Currency Translation – The functional
currency for most international subsidiaries is the local
currency. Assets and liabilities are translated at current
rates of exchange, and income and expense items are
translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the
year. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as
a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Unearned Compensation – Compensation result-
ing from performance shares granted under the Company’s
long-term incentive plan is amortized to expense over the
performance period and is adjusted for changes in the
market value of the Common Stock.

Net Income Per Share – Net income per share is
based upon the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during each year.

Stock Split
On August 23, 1997, the Board of Directors authorized a
two-for-one stock split to shareholders of record on
September 4, 1997. All references in financial statements
and notes to financial statements to number of shares, per
share amounts, and market prices of the Company’s
Common Stock have been restated to reflect the increased
number of shares outstanding.

Accounting Changes
In fiscal 1999, the Company adopted two accounting
standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in June 1997. FAS No. 130, “Reporting Compre-
hensive Income,” and FAS No. 131, “Disclosures About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”.
These standards required changes to current disclosures
and did not impact results of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. The statement
establishes standards for recording derivative financial
instruments and the recognition of gains or losses resulting
from changes in the fair values of those instruments. The
Company plans to adopt the new standard in fiscal 2001,
however, the Company has not determined the anticipated
impact of FAS No. 133.

Discontinued Operations
In fiscal 1999, the Company decided to sell its Semiconductor business and spin off its Lanier Worldwide subsidiary. Accordingly, the results of operations and the net assets of these
business segments have been reclassified as discontinued operations.

Summarized financial information for the discontinued operations follows:

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Net Sales $ 2,032.4 $ 1,952.6 $1,848.6 
Income before income taxes $ 133.1 $ 96.3  $ 212.8 
Income taxes 43.7 29.7 69.6 
Income from discontinued operations 89.4 66.6 143.2 
Provision for disposal of discontinued operations after income tax benefits of $5.8 million (77.0) – –
Discontinued operations net of income taxes $ 12.4 $ 66.6 $ 143.2 

(In millions) July 2, 1999 July 3, 1998

Current assets $ 930.6 $ 1,066.8 
Total assets 1,994.5 2,088.5 
Current liabilities 660.8 477.5 
Total liabilities 743.2 581.9 
Accumulated comprehensive income (41.9) (27.9) 
Net assets of discontinued operations $ 1,293.2 $ 1,534.5 
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Joint Ventures
The Company has investments in joint ventures (less than 50% owned) which are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Condensed balance sheets as of July 2, 1999, and
July 3, 1998, and condensed statements of income for fiscal years 1999, 1998, and 1997 for these joint ventures follows. The Company has adjustments to income related to these invest-
ments that are not pushed down to these condensed financial statements. The amount of income before taxes included in ”Other income“ related to these joint ventures is $7.5 million
in 1999, $4.0 million in 1998, and $2.8 million in 1997.
Condensed Balance Sheet

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Revenue $ 212.2 $ 165.8 $ 81.7  
Costs and expenses 195.6 139.8 76.4  
Income before income taxes 16.6 26.0 5.3  
Income taxes 4.7 2.2 .7  
Net Income $ 11.9 $ 23.8 $ 4.6  

Restructuring
In fiscal 1999, the Company recorded a $5.1 million charge
($3.3 million after income tax) for severance costs associ-
ated with the restructuring of the Company. The Company
has identified employee reductions of 738, most of which
will occur during the first half of fiscal 2000.

In fiscal 1998, the Company recorded a $16.1 million
charge ($10.1 million after income tax) for severance and 
other product line exit costs. Severance reserves were

established for the reduction of 101 employees within the
Company’s U.S. operations. Other restructuring actions
included the write-off of capitalized software and other
long-term assets associated with the exit from the
Company’s analog base station, wirefree communication
devices and transportation tracking systems product lines.
Estimated discounted cash flows were used in deter-
mining the fair value of assets and liabilities in recording
the restructuring charge. Cash outlays for restructuring

actions were for severance benefits. Sales from exited
product lines were $13.4 million in 1998 and $23.1 million
in 1997. Operating profit from these product lines was 
not material. 

In fiscal 1999, all prior year restructuring actions
were completed.

The components and use of restructuring reserves are
summarized below:

Original Use of Reserve Reserve Balance
(In millions) Reserve Cash Non-Cash at July 2, 1999

Fiscal 1998:
Severance benefits $ 3.8 $ 3.8 – –
Capitalized software write-offs 9.0 – $ 9.0 –
Equipment write-offs 1.0 – 1.0 –
Other long-term asset write-offs 2.3 – 2.3 –

$16.1 $ 3.8 $ 12.3 –
Fiscal 1999:

Severance benefits $ 5.1 $ – $ – $ 5.1  

(In millions) 1999 1998

Assets
Current assets $127.5 $ 89.3  
Non-current assets 60.0 43.5   

$187.5 $132.8   
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $102.7 $ 61.2   
Non-current liabilities 9.1 .2    
Shareholders’ equity 75.7 71.4   

$187.5 $132.8   

Condensed Statements of Income

The information set forth in the remaining notes to the financial statements relates to continuing operations unless otherwise specified:
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(In millions) 1999 1998

Accounts receivable $ 416.6 $ 353.0
Notes receivable due within one year – net 17.0 12.8 

433.6 365.8
Less allowances for collection losses 21.9 18.8 

$ 411.7 $ 347.0 

(In millions) 1999 1998

Finished products $ 34.7 $ 30.6
Work in process 66.0 83.5
Raw materials and supplies 105.0 102.3 

$ 205.7 $216.4 

(In millions) 1999 1998

Land $ 13.6 $ 23.7 
Buildings 255.0 257.2 
Machinery and equipment 547.3 556.2 

815.9 837.1
Less allowances for depreciation 524.3 522.3 

$ 291.6 $ 314.8 

Receivables
Receivables are summarized below:

Inventories and Unbilled Costs
Inventories are summarized below:

Unbilled costs and accrued earnings on fixed-price contracts are net of progress payments of $171.1 million at July 2, 1999, and $179.0 million at July 3, 1998.

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are summarized below:

Intangibles
Accumulated amortization of intangible assets was $22.3 million at July 2, 1999, and $19.5 million at July 3, 1998.

Extraordinary Loss
In June 1999, the Company retired $150.0 million of 10-3⁄8% debentures due in 2018 and $96.0 million of notes payable to insurance companies due from 1999 to 2001. Debt retirement resulted
in an extraordinary loss of $9.2 million ($.12 per share), net of related income taxes of $4.7 million.
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Credit Arrangements
At July 2, 1999, the Company had available syndicated
credit facilities with various banks that provide for bor-
rowings up to $750 million. A $500 million facility expires
November 2001. The remaining $250 million facilities
were repaid and terminated in August 1999. Interest
rates on borrowings under the $500 million facility are
determined by a pricing matrix based upon the Company’s
long-term debt rating assigned by Standard and Poor’s
Ratings Group and Moody’s Investors Service. A facility
fee is payable on the credit and determined in the same

manner as the interest rates. The Company is not
required to maintain compensating balances in connec-
tion with this agreement. Under its credit facilities,
$404.2 million was outstanding at July 2, 1999, $100 
million of which has been classified as long-term based
on the Company’s intent to maintain borrowings of at
least that amount for the next year.

The Company also has lines of credit for short-term
financing aggregating $77.3 million from various U.S. 
and foreign banks, of which $57.8 million was available
on July 2, 1999. These arrangements provide for borrowing

at various interest rates, are reviewed annually for
renewal, and may be used on such terms as the Company
and the banks mutually agree. These lines do not require
compensating balances. These agreements contain 
certain financial covenants including maintenance of at
least $900 million of tangible net worth and total debt 
not to exceed 50 percent of total capital. Approximately
$149.8 million worth of debt was included in net assets of
discontinued operations on the July 2, 1999, consolidated 
balance sheet.

The weighted average interest rate for bank notes was 6.3% at July 2, 1999 and 5.8% at July 3, 1998.

Long-term Debt
Long-term debt includes the following:

The weighted average interest rate for notes payable to banks was 6.3% at July 2, 1999 and 6.0% at July 3, 1998.

Maturities of long-term debt for the five years following 1999 are: $0.5 million in 2000, $32.4 million in 2001, $100.4 million in 2002, $30.9 million in 2003, and $0.4 million in 2004.

Short-term Debt
Short-term debt is summarized below:

(In millions) 1999 1998

Bank notes $ 323.7 $ 144.5
Other – 35.5 

$ 323.7 $ 180.0 

(In millions) 1999 1998

Notes payable to banks, due from 2001 to 2016 $ 162.5 $ 162.5
10 3⁄8% debentures, due 2018 – 150.0
6.35% debentures, due 2028 150.0 150.0
7% debentures, due 2026 100.0 100.0
6.65% debentures, due 2006 100.0 100.0
Notes payable to insurance companies, due from 1999 to 2001 – 96.0
Other 2.0 2.5 

$ 514.5 $ 761.0 
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Preferred Stock Purchase Rights
On December 6, 1996, the Company declared a dividend of
one preferred share purchase right for each outstanding
share of Common Stock. These rights, which expire on
December 6, 2006, are evidenced by Common Stock share
certificates and trade with the Common Stock until they
become exercisable, entitle the holder to purchase one
two-hundredth of a share of Participating Preferred Stock
for $250, subject to adjustment. The rights are not exercis-
able until the earlier of 10 business days (or such later date
fixed by the Board) after a party commences a tender or
exchange offer to acquire a beneficial interest of at least
15% of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock, or the
first date of public announcement by the Company that a

person has acquired a beneficial interest of at least 15%
of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock or such later
date fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Upon the first date of public announcement by the
Company that a person has acquired a beneficial interest
of at least 15% of the Company’s outstanding Common
Stock, or such later date fixed by the Board of Directors of
the Company, each right (other than rights beneficially
owned by an acquiring person or any affiliate or associate
thereof) would entitle the holder to purchase shares of
Common Stock of the Company having a market value
equal to twice the exercise price of the right. In addition,
each right (other than rights beneficially owned by an
acquiring person or any affiliate or associate thereof)

would entitle the rightholder to exercise the right and
receive shares of common stock of the acquiring company,
upon a merger or other business combination, having a
market value of twice the exercise price of the right.

Under certain circumstances after the rights become
exercisable, the Board of Directors may elect to exchange
all of the then outstanding rights for shares of Common
Stock at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock
per right, subject to adjustment. The rights have no voting
privileges and may be redeemed by the Board of Directors
at a price of $.01 per right at any time prior to the acquisi-
tion of a beneficial ownership of 15% of the outstanding
Common Stock.

Number of Weighted Average Option Prices
Shares Exercise Price Per Share 

Exercised during the year:
1997 472,208 $ 21.12 $ 7.19 to $34.88
1998 439,703 $ 26.46 $ 10.94 to $45.50
1999 132,574 $ 24.17 $ 7.19 to $35.63 

Granted during 1999 789,340 $ 34.16 $ 29.88 to $42.00  
Terminations during 1999 212,188 $ 38.53 $ 24.00 to $51.00 
Outstanding at July 3, 1998 1,734,443 $ 34.83 $ 7.19 to $53.63
Outstanding at July 2, 1999 2,179,523 $ 34.88 $ 7.19 to $53.63
Exercisable at July 3, 1998 683,297 $ 27.68 $ 7.19 to $49.88
Exercisable at July 2, 1999 1,096,045 $ 33.64 $ 7.19 to $53.63

OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE OPTIONS  
Average Remaining Weighted Average Weighted

Range of Exercise Prices Number of Options Life (years) Exercise Price Number of Options Average Exercise Price

$ 7.19 – $ 29.88 433,003 3 $ 25.98 432,403 $ 25.97
$ 30.69 – $ 42.00 1,135,778 6 $ 33.25 304,450 $ 31.50
$ 42.34 – $ 53.63 610,742 5 $ 44.21 359,192 $ 44.70

2,179,523 1,096,045

Price ranges of outstanding and exercisable options as of July 2, 1999, are summarized below:

Stock Options and Awards
The following information relates to stock option and incentive stock awards. Option prices are 100 percent of market value on the date the options are granted. Option grants are for a
maximum of ten years after dates of grant and may be exercised in installments.
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Presented below is pro forma information regarding net income and net income per share. It has been determined as if the Company had accounted for stock options using the fair value
method of accounting for stock options. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Because the fair value method of accounting for options
applies only to options granted subsequent to June 30,
1995, the pro forma effect was not fully reflected 
until 1999.

The Company has a stock incentive plan for direc-
tors and key employees. Awards under this plan may
include the grant of performance shares, restricted stock,
stock options, stock appreciation rights or other stock-
based awards. The aggregate number of shares of

Common Stock which may be awarded under the plan in
each fiscal year is one percent of the total outstanding
shares of Common Stock plus shares available from prior
years. Performance shares outstanding were 429,869 at
July 2, 1999; 625,365 at July 3, 1998; and 827,110 at
June 27, 1997. Shares of Common Stock reserved for
future awards under the plan were 2,296,417 at July 2,
1999; 2,509,002 at July 3, 1998; and 2,380,516 at June
27, 1997.

Under the Company’s domestic retirement plan,
employees may purchase a limited amount of the
Company’s Common Stock at 70 percent of current market
value. The discounts from fair market value on Common
Stock purchased by employees under the domestic
retirement plans are charged to compensation expense 
in the period of the related purchase. Shares of Common
Stock reserved for future purchases by the retirement
plan were 2,196,341 at July 2, 1999.

Net Income Per Share
Average outstanding shares used in the computation of net income per share are summarized below:

1999 1998 1997

Expected dividend yield 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
Expected stock price volatility 24.5% 20.4% 22.4%
Risk-free interest rate 5.0% 5.8% 6.3%
Expected life (years) 4 4 4

(In millions, except per share amounts) 1999 1998 1997

Net income $ 5.3 $ 4.9 $ 2.7
Basic net income per share $ .07 $ .06 $ .04 
Diluted net income per share $ .07 $ .06 $ .03

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Basic:
Weighted average shares outstanding 79.9 79.9 78.8
Contingently issuable shares (.5) (.6) (.7)

79.4 79.3 78.1
Diluted:

Weighted average shares outstanding 79.9 79.9 78.8
Dilutive stock options .1 .3 .3
Contingently issuable shares (.3) (.2) (.3)

79.7 80.0 78.8

For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of options is amortized to expense over their three-year vesting period. Under the fair value method, the Company’s net
income and net income per share would have been reduced as follows:
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Retirement Plans
Retirement and defined benefit plans expense from con-
tinuing operations amounted to $43.0 million in 1999,
$55.0 million in 1998 and $50.8 million in 1997.

Research and Development
Company-sponsored research and product development
costs from continuing operations are expensed as incurred.
These costs were $92.4 million in 1999, $94.0 million in
1998, and $85.6 million in 1997.

Customer-sponsored research and development
costs are incurred pursuant to long-term contractual
arrangements and are accounted for principally by the
percentage-of-completion method. Customer-sponsored

research and development costs incurred under govern-
ment-sponsored contracts require the Company to provide
a product or service meeting certain defined performance
or other specifications (such as designs).

Interest Expense
Total interest from continuing operations was $9.9 million
in 1999, $13.5 million in 1998, and $23.8 million in 1997.
Interest attributable to funds used to finance major long-
term construction projects is capitalized as an additional
cost of the related asset. Interest capitalized was $0.1
million in 1999, $1.0 million in 1998, and $0.0 million in
1997. Interest paid was $14.6 million in 1999, $9.9 million
in 1998 and $20.7 million in 1997.

Lease Commitments
Total rental expense from continuing operations amounted
to $21.8 million in 1999, $19.3 million in 1998, and $16.2
million in 1997. Future minimum rental commitments
under leases, primarily for land and buildings, amounted
to approximately $63.6 million at July 2, 1999. These
commitments for the years following 1999 are:
2000 – $16.7 million, 2001 – $13.0 million, 2002 – $9.6
million, 2003 – $7.0 million, 2004 – $5.3 million, and
$12.0 million, thereafter.

Income Taxes
The provisions for income taxes from continuing operations are summarized as follows: 

The components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Current:
United States $ 38.5 $ 17.3 $ 4.7 
International (3.4) 6.3 5.7 
State and local 5.0 5.1 (.8) 

40.1 28.7 9.6 
Deferred:

United States (8.1) 11.9 24.3 
International (3.3) (2.0) (3.0) 
State and local (.6) (1.3) 4.0 

(12.0) 8.6 25.3 
$ 28.1 $ 37.3 $ 34.9 

1999 1998
(In millions) Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Inventory valuations $ 16.8 – $ 12.9        –
Accruals 107.1 $ (30.7) 93.8 $ (23.3)
Depreciation – (20.8) – (29.6) 
Leases – (1.0) – 1.6 
International tax loss carryforwards – 5.0 – –
All other – net 4.5 2.9 4.6 5.5 

128.4 (44.6) 111.3 (45.8) 
Valuation allowance – (2.7) – (1.6)

$ 128.4 $ (47.3) $ 111.3 $ (47.4) 
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A reconciliation of the statutory United States income tax rate to the effective income tax rate follows:

United States income taxes have not been provided on $76 million of undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries because of the Company’s intention to reinvest these earnings.
The determination of unrecognized deferred U.S. tax liability for the undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries is not practicable. Pretax income (loss) from continuing operations
of international subsidiaries was $2.7 million in 1999, $(3.4) million in 1998 and $2.1 million in 1997. Income taxes paid were $35.5 million in 1999, $29.2 million in 1998 and $57.8 
million in 1997.

Business Segments
In fiscal 1999, the Company adopted Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosure
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” The new standard changes the information
the Company reports about its operating segments.
Operating segment information for prior years has been
restated to conform to the 1999 presentation. 

The Company is structured primarily around 
the markets it serves and operates in two business seg-
ments – Government Communications and Commercial
Communications. The Government Communications 
segment engages in advanced research and develops,

designs, and produces advanced communication and
information processing systems. The Commercial 
Communications segment produces broadcast, radio 
communications, and telecommunications products and
systems. The Company’s products and systems are 
produced principally in the United States with interna-
tional revenues derived primarily from exports.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in the Significant
Accounting Policies footnote. The Company evaluates 
performance based on profit or loss from operations before
income taxes excluding interest income and expense,
equity income, and gains or losses from securities 

and other investments. Intersegment sales, which are
insignificant, are accounted for at prices comparable to
unaffiliated customers. Net sales and operating profit by
segment are on page 40. That information is an integral
part of these financial statements.

Sales made to the U.S. government by all segments
(primarily the Government Communications segment)
were 42.3 percent of total sales from continuing 
operations in 1999, 47.2 percent of sales from continuing
operations in 1998, and 43.4 percent of sales from 
continuing operations in 1997.

Selected information by business segment and geographical area is summarized below:

1999 1998 1997

Statutory U.S. income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes 3.6 2.4 2.0
International income – – 3.1 
Tax benefits related to export sales (4.0) (3.8) (4.8)
Nondeductible amortization 1.6 1.0 1.0
Other items (.2) 1.4 (1.1)
Effective income tax rate 36.0% 36.0% 35.2%

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Total Assets
Government Communications $ 463.5 $ 517.7 $ 570.8
Commercial Communications 736.7 731.0 699.1
Headquarters 1,758.4 1,981.7 1,805.8

$2,958.6 $3,230.4 $3,075.7

Capital Expenditures
Government Communications $ 19.5 $ 24.9 $ 24.0
Commercial Communications 35.5 32.7 29.8
Headquarters 5.4 29.7 13.8

$ 60.4 $ 87.3 $ 67.6
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Headquarters assets consist primarily of cash, marketable securities, deferred income taxes, plant and equipment, and net assets of discontinued operations. Export sales were $242.2
million in 1999, $320.6 million in 1998 and $238.5 million in 1997. Export sales and net sales of international operations were principally to Europe, Asia, and Latin America.

Financial Instruments
The carrying values of cash equivalents, marketable 
securities, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts
payable, short-term debt, and long-term debt approximate
fair value. The fair value of long-term debt as determined
by quotes from financial institutions was $493.5 million at
July 2, 1999, and $779.6 million at July 3, 1998.

The Company uses foreign exchange contracts and
options to hedge intercompany accounts and off-balance-
sheet foreign currency commitments. Specifically, these
foreign exchange contracts offset foreign currency denom-
inated inventory and purchase commitments from suppliers,

accounts receivable from and future committed sales to
customers, and firm committed operating expenses.
Management believes the use of foreign currency financial
instruments should reduce the risks which arise from doing
business in international markets. Contracts are for periods
consistent with the terms of the underlying transaction,
generally one year or less. At July 2, 1999, open foreign
exchange contracts were $37.0 million (as described
below), of which $7.7 million were to hedge off-balance-
sheet commitments. The fair value of foreign exchange
contracts and options as determined by quoted market
indices and quotes from financial institutions was $37.0 

million. Additionally, for the year ended July 2, 1999, the
Company purchased and sold $366.1 million of foreign
exchange forward and option contracts. 

Deferred gains and losses are included on a net basis
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as other assets and are
recorded in income as part of the underlying transaction
when it is recognized.

At July 2, 1999, the Company had no open option 
contracts. Total open foreign exchange contracts at July 2,
1999, are described in the table below.

Commitments to Buy Foreign Currencies (in millions)

CONTRACT AMOUNT  
Currency Foreign Currency U.S. Deferred Gains and (Losses) Maturities (in months)

Canadian Dollar 33.8 $ 23.0 $ – 1 
British Pound 2.2 3.5 – 1-7

CONTRACT AMOUNT  
Currency Foreign Currency U.S. Deferred Gains and (Losses) Maturities (in months)

British Pound 5.5 $ 9.0 $ .3 2-10
Korean Won 1,501.3 1.5 .2 1-2 

Commitments to Sell Foreign Currencies (in millions)

(In millions) 1999 1998 1997

Depreciation and Amortization
Government Communications $ 20.9 $ 23.8 $ 25.5
Commercial Communications 32.9 28.3 24.9
Headquarters 9.7 9.8 12.4

$ 63.5 $ 61.9 $ 62.8

Geographical Information
U.S. operations:                

Net sales $ 1,537.2 $ 1,689.0 $1,725.3
Long-lived assets $ 546.7 $ 571.4 $ 507.6

International operations:
Net sales $ 206.3 $ 235.8 $ 223.3
Long-lived assets $ 87.3 $ 71.3 $ 85.8       

Selected business segment and geographic information (cont.)
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Selected quarterly financial data is summarized below.

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts) Quarters Ended
Fiscal 1999 10-2-98(1) 1-1-99 4-2-99 7-2-99(2) Total Year

Net sales $ 412.6 $ 417.5 $ 445.4 $ 468.0 $1,743.5  
Gross profit 110.0   120.6 118.1 116.5 465.2  
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 11.3 27.2 34.7 4.8 78.0 
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item 7.2 17.4 22.2 3.1 49.9
Discontinued operations 21.2 35.4 19.2 (63.4) 12.4
Extraordinary loss – – – (9.2) (9.2)
Net income 28.4 52.8 41.4 (69.5) 53.1 
Per share (Basic):

Continuing operations before extraordinary loss .09 .22 .28 .04 .63
Discontinued operations .27 .44 .24 (.80)   .16
Extraordinary loss – – – (.12) (.12)
Net income .36 .66 .52 (.88) .67

Per share (Diluted):
Continuing operations before extraordinary loss .09 .22 .28 .04 .63
Discontinued operations  .27 .44 .24 (.80) .16
Extraordinary loss – – – (.12) (.12)
Net income .36 .66 .52 (.88) .67
Cash dividends .24 .24 .24 .24 .96
Stock prices (high/low) 44.25–29.94 39.69–27.56 39.94–27.81 40.63–27.31

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts) Quarters Ended
Fiscal 1998 10-3-97 1-2-98 4-3-98 7-3-98(3) Total Year

Net sales $ 502.1 $ 476.6 $ 470.5 $ 475.6 $1,924.8
Gross profit 121.8 123.8 132.3 103.4 481.3 
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 28.0 32.3 34.1 9.3 103.7
Income from continuing operations 17.9   20.7 21.8 6.0 66.4
Discontinued operations 25.7 32.0 38.1 (29.2) 66.6
Net income 43.6 52.7 59.9 (23.2) 133.0
Per share (Basic):

Continuing operations .23 .26 .28 .08 .84
Discontinued operations .32 .41 .48 (.37) .84
Net income .55 .67 .76 (.29) 1.68

Per share (Diluted):
Continuing operations .23 .26 .28 .08 .83
Discontinued operations .32 .40 .47 (.37) .83
Net income .55 .66 .75 (.29) 1.66
Cash dividends .22 .22 .22 .22 .88 
Stock prices (high/low) 49–40.19 50 –40.75 55.31–41.75 53– 40.38

(1) Income from continuing operations includes a $20.6 million ($13.6 million after tax) special charge for litigation costs.
(2) Income from continuing operations includes a $5.1 million ($3.1 million after tax) restructuring charge. Discontinued operations includes $82.8 million ($77.0 after income tax) provision for disposal of discontinued operations.
(3) Income from continuing operations includes a $16.1 million ($10.1 million after income tax) restructuring charge.
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To Harris Directors and Shareholders:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harris Corporation and subsidiaries as of July 2, 1999 and July 3, 1998, and the related consolidated statements

of income, cash flows, and comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended July 2, 1999. These financial statements are the 

responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements of GE Harris Railway

Electronics, LLC and subsidiaries, (a company in which the Corporation has a 49% interest), have been audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us; insofar as our

opinion on the consolidated financial statements relates to data included for GE Harris Railway Electronics, LLC and subsidiaries, it is based solely on their report.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position

of Harris Corporation and subsidiaries at July 2, 1999 and July 3, 1998, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the 

period ended July 2, 1999, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Orlando, Florida

July 28, 1999

Report of Independent Public Accountants
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Business Segment Information

Fiscal Year Government Commercial
Communications Communications Total

1995 $1,034.7 $725.6 $1,760.3
1996 953.2 843.9 1,797.1
1997 996.6 952.0 1,948.6
1998 951.1 973.7 1,924.8

1999 $ 813.2 $930.3 $1,743.5

Net Sales (continuing operations) (In millions)

Government Commercial Headquarters Other Interest Interest
Fiscal Year Communications Communications Expense Income* Income Expense Total

1995 $ 98.9 $ 74.6 $(74.8) $ 2.1 $ 6.3 $ (44.4) $ 62.7 
1996 78.9 85.2 (68.1) 8.6 6.0 (33.3) 77.3 
1997 84.7 73.7 (70.4) 30.8 4.2 (23.8) 99.2 
1998** 43.9 60.0 (59.4) 57.6 14.1 (12.5) 103.7 

1999*** $ 52.1 $ 34.1 $(31.0) $ 19.3 $13.3 $ (9.8) $ 78.0 

*    “Other income” operating profit includes equity income, royalties, and gains and losses from the sale of securities and other investments.
**   Fiscal 1998 results include restructuring expense of $16.1 million of which $7.8 million is allocated to the Government Communications segment and $8.3 million is allocated to the Commercial Communications segment.
*** Fiscal 1999 Headquarters expense includes restructuring expense of $5.1 million. Commercial Communications segment results include a $20.6 million charge for litigation costs.

Operating Profit (continuing operations) (In millions)
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(All figures in millions except per share amounts) 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Revenue from sales and services $1,743.5 $1,924.8 $1,948.6 $1,797.1 $1,760.2
Cost of sales and services 1,278.3 1,443.5 1,460.7 1,325.6 1,311.0
Interest expense 9.8 12.5 23.8 33.3 44.4
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 78.0 103.7 99.2 77.3 62.7 
Income taxes 28.1 37.3 34.9 27.7 22.5 
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item 49.9 66.4 64.3 49.6 40.2
Discontinued operations net of income taxes 12.4 66.6 143.2 128.8 114.3
Income before extraordinary item 62.3 133.0 207.5 178.4 154.5
Extraordinary loss from early retirement of debt net of income taxes (9.2) – – – –
Net income 53.1 133.0 207.5 178.4 154.5 
Average shares outstanding (diluted) 79.7 80.0 78.8 77.8 78.2
Per share data (diluted):

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item .63 .83 .81 .64 .52
Discontinued operations .16 .83 1.82 1.65 1.46
Extraordinary loss (.12) – – – –
Net income .67 1.66 2.63 2.29 1.98
Cash dividends .96 .88 .76 .68 .62

Net working capital 224.1 268.6 310.6 386.0 310.8
Net plant and equipment 291.6 314.8 293.1 293.9 267.6
Long-term debt 514.5 761.0 681.4 584.4 471.7
Total assets 2,958.6 3,230.4 3,075.7 2,677.9 2,420.4
Shareholders’ equity 1,589.5 1,637.4 1,593.9 1,372.8 1,248.9
Book value per share 19.96 20.46 20.02 17.66 16.06

*  Results for fiscal 1999 include after-tax charges of $3.3 million (4 cents per share) for restructuring expenses and a $13.6 million (17 cents per share) special charge for litigation costs.



Buying and Selling Stock
Harris Corporation Common Stock generally is bought or sold
through a stockbroker or a financial institution that provides
brokerage services. You do not need to contact Harris in con-
nection with the sale or purchase of its Common Stock.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan offered by Harris
Corporation’s Plan agent, The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., Harris
shareholders can buy additional shares by reinvesting their cash
dividends or by investing additional cash. For details, contact
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C. (address and toll-free
number are noted in the second column on this page).

Transferring Stock or Making a Name Change
A stock transfer is required  1) when shares are donated as a
gift, or  2) when there is a change in name or ownership. To
transfer stock, complete and sign the assignment section on
the back of the certificate, or on an assignment form separate
from the stock certificate. Then forward it, via registered mail,
to ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., P.O. Box 3312,
South Hackensack, NJ  07606-1912. Be sure to include all nec-
essary names, addresses, and Social Security or tax identifica-
tion numbers for the new registration. The signature(s) must be
guaranteed by a financial institution or stock broker that is a
recognized member of the Medallion STAMP Program acceptable
to the transfer agent before the certificate is submitted to
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C.

Change of Address
Shareholders should send change-of-address information to
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., P.O. Box 3316, South
Hackensack, NJ  07606-1916, or call 1-888-261-6777 (toll free)
as soon as possible to ensure proper and timely delivery of 
dividends and important mailings from the company.

Missing Certificates
If stock certificates are lost, stolen, or destroyed, you should
immediately notify ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C.,
Estoppel Department, P.O. Box 3317, South Hackensack, NJ
07606-1917 by mail. Include exact name(s) in which the stock is
registered and, if possible, the numbers and issue dates of the
missing certificates.

Dividends
Notify ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., P.O. Box 3315,
South Hackensack, NJ  07606-1915 if you fail to receive your
dividend check in a timely manner.

Duplicate Mailings
Shares owned by one person but held in different forms of the
same name (e.g., John Smith, John B. Smith, J.B. Smith) result
in duplicate mailing of shareholder information at added
expense to the company and to you as a shareholder. By law,
such duplication can be eliminated only at the request of the
shareholder. Notify ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C.,
P.O. Box 3316, South Hackensack, NJ  07606-1916 if you wish
to eliminate duplication.

Consolidating Accounts
Some shareholders have more than one account in the same
name, which results in the mailing of a separate dividend check
and/or other company material for each account. To consolidate
accounts, send stock certificates, via registered mail, to
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., P.O. Box 3312, South
Hackensack, NJ  07606-1916  with signatures guaranteed as
noted in the section for transferring stock.

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address
Harris Corporation
1025 W. NASA Boulevard
Melbourne, Florida 32919
407-727-9100

Stock Exchanges
New York, Boston, Chicago, Pacific, Philadelphia
Ticker Symbol:  HRS

Transfer Agent and Registrar
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C.
Overpeck Centre
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ  07660
1-888-261-6777
The ChaseMellon Internet Address is:

www.chasemellon.com

Annual Meeting
The 1999 annual meeting of shareholders will be held on
October 22 at the Melbourne Airport Hilton at Rialto Place,
Melbourne, Florida, starting at 10:00 a.m.

Form 10-K
A copy of the annual report filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Form 10-K is available, without charge, upon 
written request to the corporate secretary at:

Harris Corporation
1025 W. NASA Boulevard
Melbourne, Florida 32919

Harris on the Internet
Information about Harris Corporation is available on the
Internet. You may access quarterly and annual financial infor-
mation; news releases; dividend information; an overview of
the company’s products, systems, and services; and other infor-
mation. The Harris World Wide Web address is: 

www.harris.com

Environmental, Health and Safety
Harris Corporation is committed to protecting the environment
and the health and safety of employees. We have implemented
programs that minimize waste, reduce emissions, and conserve
energy and water.  In the area of health and safety, Harris 
consistently remains below the industry average for lost time
incidents, and we continue to pursue our goal of further reducing
severity rates. Our focus in the year ahead is on reducing the
number of incidents that do not result in lost time; improving
the efficiency of our operations by conserving materials and
resources; evaluating the potential environmental impacts 
of our products; and maximizing the use of our assets through
lifecycle management.

This entire annual report is printed on recycled paper.

CHQ-990190

Aurora, Sigma, StarBurst, WINRoll, Constellation, Microstar 7, Seneca,
Flexicoder, Clearview, LiveTV, and Diamond CD are trademarks or registered
trademarks of Harris Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
TrainTalk, PINPOINT, Precision Train Control, and Precision Dispatch are 
trademarks of GE Harris Railway Electronics, L.L.C. Air Site Backhaul Free Base
Station is a registered trademark of Air Net Communications Corporation.

Shareholder Information
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Directors & Officers

Officers and Senior ManagementDirectors

Phillip W. Farmer
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Harris Corporation

Robert Cizik
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Cooper Industries, Inc.
(commercial and industrial products)

Lester E. Coleman
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Lubrizol Corporation
(specialty chemical products)

Alfred C. DeCrane, Jr.
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Texaco Inc. 
(petroleum products)

Ralph D. DeNunzio
President
Harbor Point Associates, Inc.
(private investment and consulting)

Joseph L. Dionne
Chairman of the Board and
Retired Chief Executive Officer
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.
(publishing and information)

John T. Hartley
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Harris Corporation

Karen Katen
President
United States Pharmaceuticals Group,
Pfizer, Inc.
(pharmaceutical products)

Alexander B. Trowbridge
President
Trowbridge Partners, Inc.
(business consulting)
_______________________________________________________________________________________

Joseph A. Boyd
Chairman Emeritus

Richard B. Tullis
Chairman Emeritus

Office of the Chairman
Phillip W. Farmer
Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer

E. Van Cullens
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Bryan R. Roub
Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Division Presidents
Robert K. Henry
Government Communications Systems

Richard B. Peabody
Microwave Communications

Bruce M. Allan
Broadcast Communications

Stephen F. Panyko
Communications Products

Chester A. Massari
RF Communications

Corporate Management
Richard L. Ballantyne
Vice President
General Counsel and Secretary

David R. Ballard
Vice President
Shared Services

Kwame A. Boakye
Vice President
Technology

Paul K. Carroll
Vice President
Marketing

James L. Christie
Vice President
Controller

Nick E. Heldreth
Vice President
Human Resources and Corporate Relations

John G. Johnson
Vice President
Quality and Productivity

William H. Miller
Vice President
Harris Information Services

Pamela Padgett
Vice President
Investor Relations

Ronald R. Spoehel
Vice President
Corporate Development

Daniel B. Walters
Vice President
International Operations

David S. Wasserman
Vice President
Treasurer

Raymon M. White
Vice President
Washington Operations

Board Committees

Executive and Finance Committee
John T. Hartley, Chairman
Robert Cizik
Ralph D. DeNunzio
Joseph L. Dionne
Phillip W. Farmer

Management Development
and Compensation Committee
Lester E. Coleman, Chairman
Joseph L. Dionne
Karen Katen

Investment Committee –
Retirement Plan
John T. Hartley, Chairman
Ralph D. DeNunzio
Phillip W. Farmer
Alexander B. Trowbridge

Audit Committee
Robert Cizik, Chairman
Lester E. Coleman
Alfred C. DeCrane, Jr.
Alexander B. Trowbridge

Ethics Committee
Alfred C. DeCrane, Jr., Chairman
Robert Cizik
Lester E. Coleman
Ralph D. DeNunzio
Joseph L. Dionne
John T. Hartley
Karen Katen
Alexander B. Trowbridge

Corporate Governance Committee
Joseph L. Dionne, Chairman
Alfred C. DeCrane, Jr.
Karen Katen



Harris Corporation
1025 West NASA Boulevard
Melbourne, Florida 32919


